AGENDA

Committee

Date and Time

~ ’ County Hall
X / Cardiff
/ CF10 4UW

(/ Tel: (029) 2087 2000
. ‘»

—~i ) Y Neuadd y Sir
CARDIFE | camdas
w Ffén: (029) 2087 2000

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 5 SEPTEMBER 2018, 4.30 PM

of Meeting
Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL
Membership Councillor McGarry (Chair)
Councillors Ahmed, Carter, Ebrahim, Goddard, Jenkins, Kelloway, Lent
and Molik
Time
approx.
1 Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence.
2 Declarations of Interest
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.
3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 18)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6
June 2018 and the Joint meeting of Community & Adult Services and
Children & Young People Scrutiny Committees held on 4 July 2018.
4 Domiciliary Care Provision in Cardiff - To Follow 4.35 pm
5 Cardiff & Vale Regional Partnership Annual Report 2017/18 5.15 pm
(Pages 19 - 78)
6 CASSC Work Programme 2018/19 (Pages 79 - 90) 5.55 pm

7 Urgent Items (if any)

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have saved the Authority approx. £2.50 in printing costs

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



8 Way Forward 6.05 pm
9 Date of next meeting

10 October 2018 at 4.30pm.

Davina Fiore

Director Governance & Legal Services

Date: Thursday, 30 August 2018

Contact: Andrea Redmond, 02920 872434, a.redmond@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



WEBCASTING

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except
where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on
the website for 6 months. A copy of it will also be retained in
accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have
consented to being filmed. By entering the body of the Chamber you
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the

public gallery area.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or
email Democratic Services

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg


mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
6 JUNE 2018

Present: Councillor McGarry(Chairperson)
Councillors Ahmed, Carter, Ebrahim, Goddard, Kelloway and
Lent

1 : APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON & COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Council at its meeting held on 24 May 2018 appointed Councillor Mary McGarry
as Chair and the following Members to the Committee:

Councillors Ali Ahmed, Joe Carter, Saeed Ebrahim, Susan Goddard, Shaun Jenkins,
Kelloway, Lent and Molik

2 : TERMS OF REFERENCE

To scrutinise, measure and actively promote improvement in the Council’s
performance in the provision of services and compliance with Council policies, aims
and objectives in the area of community and adult services, including:

e Public and Private Housing
e Disabled Facilities Grants

e Community Safety

e Neighbourhood Renewal and Communities Next
e Advice & Benefit

e Consumer Protection

e Older Persons Strategy

e Adult Social Care

e Community Care Services

e Mental Health & Physical Disabilities

e Commissioning Strategy

e Health Partnership

To assess the impact of partnerships with and resources and services provided by
external organisations including the Welsh Government, joint local government
services, Welsh Government Sponsored Public Bodies and quasi-departmental non-
governmental bodies and health services on the effectiveness of Council service
delivery.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 5



To report to an appropriate Cabinet or Council meeting on its findings and to make
recommendations on measures which may enhance Council performance and
service delivery in this area.

To be the Council’'s Crime and Disorder Committee as required by the Police and
Justice Act 2006 and any re-enactment or modification thereof; and as full delegate
of the Council to exercise all the powers and functions permitted under that Act.

3 : APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Shaun Jenkins.
4 . DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

5 : MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 May were agreed as a correct record and
signed by the Chairperson.

6 : CARDIFF AND VALE OF GLAMORGAN REGIONAL VIOLENCE AGAINST
WOMEN, DOMESTIC ABUSE AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE STRATEGY 2018 -
2023

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Susan Elsmore (Cabinet Member — Social
Care, Health and Wellbeing), Sarah McGilll (Corporate Director for People and
Communities), Jane Thomas (Assistant Director, Housing & Communities) and
Natalie Southgate (Policy & Development Manager, Housing & Communities) to the
meeting.

The Chairperson advised Members that this item was for pre-decision scrutiny prior
to consideration at Cabinet on 14t June.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Elsmore to make a statement in which she
commended the work done by officers, and in particular Natalie Southgate and Nicola
Evans, believing that it was one of the finest strategies that she has seen in terms of
her portfolio. The strategy not only supported the requirements highlighted by Welsh
Government and the Act, but sets out 5 further high level aims; Prepare, Pursue,
Prevent, Protect and Support.

Members were provided with a presentation on the Strategy by Natalie Southgate
after which the Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members.

e Members referred to the frustration that must felt by police
officers when, despite attending an incident the victim refuses to
make a complaint and noted that whilst it was addressed in the
strategy, the police also are able to conduct a victimless
prosecution.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 6



e Members noted the reference to the commissioning of a special
male victim service and expressed concern about victims within
the BME community. It was accepted that incidents of this nature
were probably underreported, but that this issue was currently
being looked at as part of ongoing development work.

. Members referenced the commitments outlined in the Prevent
aim in relation to schools/education and were advised that no
additional funding was being provided. The national training
framework will help in offering staff the training to become better
equipped to interact with, signpost and support victims.

o Members recognised the need for there to be collaboration with
the Ministry of Justice & Court System, but for that to be of
benefit, links need to be strengthened.

o Members queried the rationale for Cardiff and the Vale of
Glamorgan operating as a region; officers outlined the natural
travel to work patterns, service access migrations for residents;
the existence of a number of services and also the shared health
board footprint. Members were advised that, whilst the Strategy
primarily covers Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan, it does not
preclude wider working across the region.

In relation to the delivery of the Strategy, Members were advised
that currently there was no real cost but it is anticipated that the
costs of training will be shared equally. An advisory group is
assessing training needs going forward. Costs will also come
from existing funding streams, and the Strategy had presented
opportunities to consider integration and efficiencies.

e Members asked whether there had been any consultation with
religious leaders and where advised that whilst the impact of
religion was acknowledged they had not been specifically
targeted. They were aware however BAWSO do liaise with BME
victims and the various cultural leaders.

Members stated that they wished to ensure that awareness is
raised and information can be accessed throughout the city, for
example in the hubs, on buses and bill boards

e Members were advised that there would be an Action Plan
provided with the Strategy, which will also have to be agreed.
Welsh Government have been made aware of the delay, the
Action Plan was to have been submitted in May 2018

AGREED: that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way
forward.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 7



7 : CARERS - ASSESSMENTS & ENGAGEMENT

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Susan Elsmore (Cabinet Member — Social
Care, Health and Wellbeing), Sarah McGilll (Corporate Director for People and
Communities), and Sue Schelewa (Operational Manager, Locality Services) to the
meeting.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Elsmore to make a statement in which she stated
that she was pleased with the progress that has been made in providing carers’
assessments and highlighted the important role that officers play.

Members were provided with a presentation which outlined the current position;
current provision and future development, including:-

e  Carer's Trust SE Wales (Cardiff and Vale UHB) have been
commissioned to undertake consultation and engagement with
carers, working on an accreditation award, including young carers
in schools;

e The Carers’ support team is to link in with networking events to
try and reach existing and new carers, including the Council’s
Health & Wellbeing Fayre and the launch of Dementia Friendly
City; and

e Various events are being held during Carers’ Week; a joint stall
with Cardiff and Vale UHB in UHW concourse; a drop in session
at Ely Hub Café; an advice and information session at Llanedeyrn
Hub; and Llanishen and Fairwater community coffee mornings to
be visited.

Members were invited to comment, seek clarification or raise questions on the
information received. Those discussions were summarised as follows:

e Members asked for information regarding the numbers of carers
in receipt of Direct Payments and were advised that it is believed
that 800 or 900 are in receipt of Direct Payments, however, were
unable to confirm the number of carers.

. Members were advised that of 770 assessments undertaken
approximately 25% of the carers were known. Members sought
clarification about the proportion of the 770 were in receipt of
night sit services. Officers advised that they were unable to
provide that information, however, they anticipated that out of the
3300 total (carers known to Adult Services in 2017-18) the
number of those receiving night sits would be in the low
hundreds.

AGREED: that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way
forward.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 8



8 : ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

The Scrutiny Officer advised Members that the Draft Annual Report was presented
for their consideration, which outlined the work undertaken by the Committee
between June and May.

AGREED: to approve the Draft Annual Report to be laid before Council.
9 . DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Community and Adult Services Scrutiny Committee is on

Wednesday 4 July 2018 at 4.30 pm.

The meeting terminated at 6.15 pm

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
4 JULY 2018

Present: Councillor Bridgeman (Chairperson)
Councillors Ahmed, Carter, De'Ath, Goddard, Jenkins, Lent,
McGarry, Molik, Phillips and Singh

Carol Cobert, Rebecca Crump, Karen Dell'Armi,
1 : CHAIRPERSON

AGREED - That Councillor Bridgeman be appointed as Chairperson of the Joint
Committee.

The Chairperson welcomed Gary Jones as the new Head of Democratic Services.
2 : APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors Philippa Hill-dJohn, Heather Joyce, Linda
Morgan, Jim Murphy and Rhys Taylor.

Apologies were also received from Patricia Arlotte.

3 : DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None received.

4 . LOCAL AUTHORITY SOCIAL SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Susan Elsmore, Cabinet Member, Social
Care, Health and Wellbeing, Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member, Children
and Families, Sarah McGill (Corporate Director, People and Communities) and Irfan
Alam (Assistant Director, Children’s Services) to the meeting.

The Chairperson advised Members that this meeting was being held to enable
Members to scrutinise the draft Local Authority Social Services Annual Report, which
should give a clear view of the effectiveness of the Council’s Social Care Services.
The Report would be considered by Cabinet on the 12 July 2018.

The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Members to make a statement.

The Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and Wellbeing stated that she had great
pleasure to present the 9" Annual Report, which was the second report since the
implementation of the Social Services and Well Being Act. From an Adults Services
perspective, the Act has spurred the service on in terms of making lots of progress,
this report reflects that and also how Social Services is integrating across services
with a focus on families and individuals to be independent at home for longer.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 11



The Cabinet Member was pleased to report that the preventative agenda is delivering
the results that were anticipated when the Independent Living Service was
established.

Members were advised that the service has been able to reduce the number of
Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) for social care reasons from 123 in 2016/17 to
110 in 2017/18. Work done so far is making it easier to think about what is really
important for people leaving hospital.

Safeguarding for adults has been further strengthened by enhancing effectiveness of
Regional Safeguarding Boards and safeguarding systems.

Dementia Friendly City status is progressing, with plans in the coming year to
consolidate the status.

The service is now better meeting the complex needs of older people and people
with learning disabilities in their local community by developing Day Opportunities
that has enabled more people to remain as independent as possible in their own
homes through a reablement approach to care and support; Minehead Road Day
Centre was completed last year and Grand Avenue work has started and will soon be
completed.

The Strategic Improvement Board for Adult Services facilitated a review of key
priorities in order to improve financial sustainability and service effectiveness, which
is a fantastic result in terms of budget management.

Finally, the Cabinet Member wished to pay tribute to the work of Tony Young, the
previous Director of Social Services, Amanda Phillips the previous Assistant Director
of Adult Services and of Sarah McGill the Corporate Director of People and
Communities for the extensive work that has been done in the service. The Cabinet
Member was looking forward to welcoming the New Director of Social Services in the
coming week.

The Cabinet Member for Children and Families stated that he too wished to
recognise the work of Tony Young over recent years and also of Councillor Sue Lent
as the previous Cabinet Member with responsibility for this area. The service was in
a much better position and was positive in identifying where gaps were and
addressing them.

The Cabinet Member stated Members would be aware that there was an ageing
population and increased numbers of children coming into care, and this was the
situation bringing pressures across Wales.

Notable achievement in the services were outlined including MASH, Early Help Front
Door and Signs of Safety. It was noted that there was no quick fix and these
interventions need time to embed.

The Cabinet Member stated that that it was important to continue to invest in Social
Services, to do the best for the children in Cardiff. With this in mind the future focus
would be Homes for Children, Foster Care and Child Sexual Exploitation.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 12



The Cabinet Member was pleased that the report showed the turnaround from 2012
to 2017 as over the last 14 months he had spoken to a number of service users and
staff and had found it warming that there had been such positive feedback on how
Children’s Services have been so supportive and focused on what’s best for the
children, and the report now reflects that.

The Director of People and Communities addressed Committee saying that ordinarily
she would deliver a presentation on the report but this year it was an interesting
position in that the report was of the previous Director of Social Services. She
considered it was a well written and comprehensive report which includes fascinating
information giving a clear foundation on which to build focus and themes for the
forthcoming year. Prevention would be one of those themes and locality focus is
starting to come through. There would also be focus on person centered approach,
strength based approach and integration of services around the need of the
individual.

The Director wished to pay tribute to Kim Brown for the huge amount of work she had
contributed to the report.

The Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members;

Members noted that Adult Services have a surplus budget and look at their budget
on a monthly basis and asked if Children’s Services do the same. Members were
advised that the pressures in children’s services include spiraling costs of across
county placements, reliance on agency staff and work on recruitment and retention;
there was a plan to increase placements in Cardiff and to bring children back into
County if appropriate, this along with a plan to increase fostering places would
hopefully balance the deficit. The Cabinet Member added that at the last Council
meeting, 11.88% extra was agreed to go into Children’s Services to recognise the
pressures. There were approximately 300 more looked after children in Cardiff than
in 2014, which was a higher gradient than the increase in population growth, however
Cardiff Children’s Services were on the right trajectory and the hope was to balance
the deficit in the next couple of years and there would be an increase from 1 to 6
Homes for Children in the next 18 months.

Members wished to thank Tony Young and Amanda Phillips for all their hard work.
Members asked with regard to Workforce Planning, what new strategies were in
place to incentivise people to stay in Cardiff or to persuade them to come. The
Cabinet Member stated that it was important to grow our own workforce and
encourage people to develop in worthwhile jobs that make a difference to people’s
lives. He considered that people are happier working in Cardiff now than they were
previously as the numbers of people leaving Cardiff have reduced dramatically.
Members were advised that there were currently social media campaigns for foster
carers and social workers which was clear on the offer to staff, including a stable
management team and clear supervision policy. The Cabinet Member explained that
the adverts close this week and he would report back on the responses received. He
added that the Universities are saying that they are not getting the candidates
through so there are Cardiff Council stalls at Universities, Graduate Fairs and
recruitment events and Social Care Wales are also actively involved.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 13



Members noted that supply is fragile and asked if there was an option to pump prime
and offer a bursary or financial incentives such as offered in nursing. The Assistant
Director stated that in Cardiff, 6 staff are seconded each year, with the commitment
to stay in Cardiff for 2 years following qualification; he explained that he wished to
grow this scheme, and added that Social Care Wales offer a bursary.

In relation to Prevention, Members asked why the increase in numbers was occurring
and whether this was being assessed. Officers stated that Cardiff was not an outlier
in looked after children numbers. Looking at core cities there were some interesting
trends that needed to be explored but the position was not unusual in terms of the
rest of the UK. Looking at preventative services, there were approximately 200
different services, it was not possible yet to assess how effective they are as they are
not joined up at present. It was possible to look at individual services but this
wouldn’t show who is not accessing the services and doesn’t capture referrals; there
are resources out there that need to be integrated, but this is a huge piece of work.

A whole Council/partnership approach to prevention would help with recruitment,
retention and performance measures. The Cabinet Member added that in line with
comparative cities like Newcastle, Liverpool and Nottingham, Signs of Safety was
seeing progress. In relation to all Wales, Cardiff was 9/22 right next to Swansea as
would be expected.

Members asked if there were any plans for any more Integrated Children’s Centre’s
and Officers advised that they would come back with a firm answer on Integrated
Children’s Centre’s but stated that more broader models were being looked at such
as Hub and Youth Centre models with 6 day opening and sustainable, larger range of
services.

Members asked, with reference to the 6 secondees that go to University each year,
whether they all pass and if any of them leave the service area. Officers advised that
they all pass and they remain in the service area for a significant amount of time.
Officers added that there are 140 full time social workers and only 13 have left in the
last year and all for legitimate reasons.

Members asked where the new Homes for Children would be situated and how big
they would be. The Cabinet Member stressed that he wanted them to be proper
family homes with community wraparound and local schools. There were 4 new
ones currently on stream which are across Cardiff but the locations cannot be made
public as yet. Members added that the north of the City should not be forgotten and
officers agreed stating that identified needs translate to delivery, noted the new build
in Cardiff North and stressed the importance of the Council owning any new facility
then commissioning the services delivered.

Members asked if there was any work underway with Higher Education and Further
Education providers in developing courses to fit need, courses that are flexible for
older students and collaboration with the Open University. Officers considered this
was a very good point not just for social work courses but also for family support
roles at different levels.

Members asked if there were any specific examples of how the Social Care and
Wellbeing Act had impacted the way services were delivered. The Cabinet Member
gave an example in that she had visited the Independent Living Service due to a

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 14



compliment that had been received about a staff member. All the team had been
there and they had shared all the compliments that they had received. When the
ILS had come in line with the Act there was greater voice and choice and a more
active offer. It had started at 1 team and now there were a number of teams and
there was a major shift from 1 in 4 to the totality of people receiving a service.
Members asked why it takes a broad sweeping legislation to re-energise a service as
continuous improvement within the service area should enable this anyway. The
Cabinet Member considered that both things help, in the case of the ILS, the service
began then the introduction of the Act provided added impetus even though
legislation takes time to turn into good service delivery. Members considered that it
may be premature to conclude that the Act had made a difference the services,
Officers stated that the statutory framework in which you operate is very important, a
permissive environment to operate in was needed and this needed a new approach,
the Act has enabled this to happen.

Members discussed whether the service actively explores the redeployment of staff
and were advised that there was a new traineeship whereby people could get a feel
for the service and then apply for a post. When asked about apprenticeships,

Officers advised that this was not offered as social work was a degree qualification.

Members referred to the top challenges for Adult Services and specifically
‘Sustainability of the domiciliary and nursing care market — working with providers to
implement the requirements of the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales)
Act 2016’. Members noted that they were told last month that this was no longer a
top risk. The Cabinet Member explained that the risk is reducing but it will always be
a risk due to the reliance on market providers. Amanda Phillips had grown
partnership arrangements there were good relationships in Cardiff now; previously
there had been only 13 providers who could bid, now there were over 60, it was
considered a challenge but a manageable one.

Members noted the partnership work with Health and asked if the services
communicated more with each other now. The Cabinet Member stated that there
was visibility of it happening now whereas previously it hadn’t been apparent.
Strategic partnerships were driving forward integration and the impact was better
delivery on the ground. There was a need for true co-located services with Health, it
would take time to filter down to operational level. There were now regular Director
meetings across local authorities for the first time.

Members referred to the ILS service and asked how hard to reach people who need
the service but are not accessing it could be reached. Members were advised that
the service was not public as yet as there was concern over managing access. The
services are working, keeping people at home independently for longer, the wish was
to grow the service and then it would be made known to the public. Officers added
that there was a key programme of work on Improving Services for Adults which
involved working with GP’s on social prescribing as there was a significant number of
people attending GP surgeries with non-medical needs. The Cabinet Member added
that CASSC had received a presentation earlier in the year on the review of
community services, making them more person centered and removing the eligibility
bar.

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 15



Members referred to the Social Services and Wellbeing Act, particularly in relation to
mental health and asked if there was any way of looking at the impact on loneliness
and isolation. The Cabinet Member explained that the Area Plan in relation to the
Regional Partnership Board shows what will be done in terms of loneliness, a societal
shift was required in terms of family, friends and neighbours and more onus on
community support. Members were reminded of the Good Gym project which was
funded through the Integrated Care Fund, the work of Age Connect and Day
Opportunities and the high need for Day Centre’s.

Members asked how young carers are identified in schools and what support and
advice is given to schools. Officers advised that there was a dedicated team working
on finalising the Young Carers Strategy, work was also being done with the YMCA. It
was noted that there was more to do but it was a priority.

Members asked what was happening with the CAHMS waiting list and were advised
that there were a number of significant issues/challenges including working towards a
medical model. The Health board was moving CAHMS to the UHB and it will be
aligned with the Children’s Services equivalent in Health. A new service will be
created that will include emotional needs.

With reference to the performance of looked after children in education, Members
noted that performance at key stage 2 had dropped from 18.4% to 12% and asked
why this had happened. Officers said they would come with a reply to this, a
response had been prepared for the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee.
Officers had been told that the tests had changed so the report needed to be
checked. Members were told that the results were the same across the country.

Members noted that the percentage of care leavers who experience homelessness
each year was between 17-21% and asked what was being done to address this.
Members were advised that work was being done on how homelessness was
reported. There are people in temporary training flats and in terms of Performance
Indictors these are still included in the Homelessness statistics, so the statistics look
worse than they are. Members were advised that this won’t change unless the how
Performance Indicators and how they are recorded and captured changes. Officers
added that information needs to be real and a breakdown of the statistics could be
brought to another committee, officers considered that as long as they know what
they are doing is right and sensible then they were confident. Officers also added
that there were no people housed in Bed and Breakfast accommodation and Cardiff
was the only local authority in that position. Members were pleased to hear this and
considered that the breakdown could be brought to a future CASSC meeting.

Members made reference to the Performance Indicator relating to people exiting
prison and considered that this should be planned for. Officers explained that a
young person in prison has to be classed as homeless and it does skew the figures.
When they are ready for release there would be a plan in place to integrate them into
the community.

Members asked how older care leavers ‘sofa surfing’ could be monitored. Officers
advised that this was a very small number, people do make choices and some do not
want tenancies. These people would still be supported and have access to a PA and

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 16



the youth gateway. When they are ready to take on a tenancy they would receive
support.

Members noted that care leavers remain Council responsibility until they are 21 and
25 if still in education.

Members asked if there would be an executive summary of the report made available
to the public and were advised there would be and it would be developed with the
help of young people.

Members noted the poor response to the survey and asked what could be done to
address this. The Cabinet Member agreed it was a challenge to get the process
right, but that stakeholders, staff and citizen panel are all involved in the report and it
does tell the real story/position of social services in Cardiff.

AGREED - That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee writes to the Cabinet

Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way
forward.

The meeting terminated at 6.55 pm

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Item 5

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
5 SEPTEMBER 2018

CARDIFF & VALE OF GLAMORGAN REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Members with background information to facilitate the scrutiny of the
Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board (RPB) Annual
Report 2017/18, attached at Appendix A.

2. Also attached as Appendix B, for Members’ information, is a summary version of
the Welsh Government “A Healthier Wales: Our Plan for Health & Social

Care” which forms an integral part of the RPB’s forward work programme.

Background'’

3. The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board (RPB) is made
up of representatives from Cardiff Council, Vale of Glamorgan Council, Cardiff &
Vale University Health Board, Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust, Cardiff
Third Sector Council (C3SC), Glamorgan Voluntary Services (GVS), Llamau,
Gofal (previously Age Alliance Wales), YMCA Cardiff, Care Forum Wales and a

carer representative.

!'Source: RPB Annual Report 2017/18 pages 3-5

Page 19



4. The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board (with support
from a Strategic Leadership Group) provides the governance arrangements for
overseeing the work of the Integrated Health & Social Care Partnership and
ensures delivery arrangements are in place to enable effective implementation of
the Act on a regional basis. Progress monitoring against this Regional Work
Programme is reported to the Board and the Senior Leadership Group for action

as required.

5. Quarterly reports on implementation are provided to the Board against a work
programme. In addition the Board receives updates on other elements of the Act
implementation which are being led by a Local Authority Regional Steering
Group. This Group has been established to focus on the operational actions
required to implement the Act and includes a number of work streams which
have been developed in response to the requirements. Senior officers from
Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils have been allocated responsibility
for making progress in these areas and provide updates and escalation reports

to the Board as required.
Issues

6. The report attached at Appendix A sets out the work of the RPB, including its

membership and governance structures (pages 3-6 of the report).

7. The report outlines how the RPB delivers its Key Objectives and Priority Areas
for Integration (Pages 6-7). Members will be familiar with the issues outlined on
these pages as they have previously considered the Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
Area Plan and Action Plan, in March 2018.

Page 20



8. The Annual Report sets out the key achievements of the RPB for 2017/18 under

the following headings:

e Older People with complex needs and long term conditions, including

dementia (pages 8-20)
e Children with complex needs due to disability or iliness (Pages 21-22)
e People with learning disabilities and Autism (pages 22-25)
e Integrated Family Support Services (pages 25-27)
e Carers, including young carers (pages 27-28)
e Integrated Care Fund (pages (pages 28-31)
e Locality Working (pages 31-32)
e Social Value (pages 33-34)
e Citizen Engagement (pages 34-35)

e Welsh Community Care Information System (WCCIS) (pages 36-37)

9. On Page 37 of the Annual Report, the RPB set out its future priorities. It states:

The Regional Partnership Board’s response to ‘A Healthier Wales’ will form an
integral part of the RPBs forward programme and will build on the partnership
working already developed through the Integrated Care Fund, Primary Care
Fund and locality working?. The Board is keen to play an active part in further
developing seamless care and developing a closer relationship with clusters
to ensure a citizen focussed approach to promoting wellbeing, independence

and keeping people at home.

(A summary copy of “A Healthier Wales” is attached at Appendix B for

Members’ information).

2 Full version of the Plan - https://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/180608healthier-wales-mainen.pdf

Page 21


https://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/180608healthier-wales-mainen.pdf

In the first 2 years of existence the RPB has delivered some key pieces of

work in response to the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act

requirements. These have included the Population Needs Assessment, the

Area Plan for Care and Support Needs and a Joint Market Position statement

and commissioning strategy for older people. Building on this work, the Board

will continue to focus on the priority areas for integration set out in the Area

Plan. However the Board has also agreed to drive forward continuing

progress in relation to:

Locality/Cluster working
Housing and Accommodation Solutions

Mental health — considering a life journey from children and young

people (including ACEs) to older people
Workforce

Alignment with the Public Service Boards

Progress against the RPBs priorities will be set out in the quarterly work

programme updates and reported as part of the Annual Report in June 2019.

Way Forward

10. At this meeting, the following witnesses will be in attendance:

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Councillor Susan Elsmore, Cabinet Member — Social Care, Health &
Well-Being

Sarah McGill, Corporate Director for People and Communities
Claire Marchant, Director of Social Services

Rachel Jones, Assistant Director - Integrating Health & Social Care.

Page 22



Legal Implications

11.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

12.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications
at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented
with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision
that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from

those recommendations.

Page 23



RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended:
i.  Consider the contents of the report, appendices and information provided at
the meeting and report any comments, observations and recommendations to

the appropriate Cabinet Member; and

i. Consider the way forward for the future scrutiny of the issues raised in the
RPB Annual Report 2017-18.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services
30 August 2018

Page 24



Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
INTEGRATED HEALTH
& SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP

Appendix A

PARTNERIAETH IECHYD
& GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL INTEGREDIG
Caerdydd & Bro Morgannig

Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
Regional Partnership Board
Annual Report 2017/18

Integrated services
delivering

outcomes that

This report meets the Welsh Government’s Annual Report requirements as set
out in the Partnership Arrangements (Wales) Regulations 2015

3 r& B %
E‘/ age connects y GG | Burckd lechyd Prifysgol $7 % %
™ rdliff & the vale. aerfiydd a'r Fro & (j z
(ﬁ[)ﬂ:p o ¥ / N HS Cardiff and Vale '“% v\b
CAERDYDD

University Health Board ",OR \Qﬁ'
UM

VALE of GLAMORGAN

. f I 7 Q GI QG | Ymddiriedolaeth GIG
==GOIQ % Llamau /fﬂw <7 Nbis ] (e el ..6"'0

W Thinking Differently e ) R

Page 25


c766552
Typewriter
Appendix A


Contents

1. Purpose, Role and Membership of the Regional Partnership Board
2. Delivering our Key Objectives and Priority Areas for Integration
3. Key Achievements in 2017/18
e Older People with complex needs and long term conditions,
including dementia
e Children with complex needs due to disability or illness
e People with learning disabilities and Autism
e Integrated Family Support Services
e Carers, including young carers
e Integrated Care Fund
e Locality Working
e Social Value
e (Citizen Engagement
e Welsh Community Care Information System (WCCIS)
4, Future Partnership Priorities
Appendices
1. RPB Terms of Reference and Membership
2. Integrated Family Support Team Budget
3. Integrated Care Fund Budget (revenue and capital)
Figures
1. RPB Governance Structure
2. Domiciliary Care and Direct Payments - Cardiff
3. Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Delayed Transfer of Care Trends
4, Delayed Transfers of Care by Health Board
5. Outcomes delivered by Cardiff ILS Visiting Team in 2017/18
6. Cardiff Day Opportunities Referrals
7. Improvements of IFST Goal Outcomes in Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
8. Overview of Integrated Care Fund
9. ICF Impact on Assisting Hospital Discharge
10. ICF Impact on Home First and Independent Living
11. ICF Impact on Cost Avoidance or Financial Savings
12.  Well-being Hub Zones
Tables
1. SPoA Service Activity Measures 2017/18
2. ISFT Performance Outcomes 2017/18

2

Page 26

Page

21
22
25
27
28
31
33
34
36

37

38
44
46



11

1.2

1.3

1.4

Purpose, Role and Membership of the Regional Partnership Board

The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board (RPB) is made up of
representatives from Cardiff Council, Vale of Glamorgan Council, Cardiff & Vale

University Health Board, Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust, Cardiff Third Sector
Council (C3SC), Glamorgan Voluntary Services (GVS), Llamau, Gofal (previously Age
Alliance Wales), YMCA Cardiff, Care Forum Wales and a carer representative. A full
list of members and the Terms of Reference of the RPB can be seen in Appendix 1.

e a/ )
Meeting of the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board, 10" May 2018

The Board has met formally four times throughout the last year and has also held
three workshops regarding priorities such as preventative services, workforce
development and social enterprise. Board Agendas and minutes of the meetings can
be viewed on our Partnership website at www.cvihsc.co.uk.

The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board (with support from a
Strategic Leadership Group) provides the governance arrangements for overseeing the
work of the Integrated Health & Social Care Partnership and ensures delivery
arrangements are in place to enable effective implementation of the Act on a regional
basis. Progress monitoring against this Regional Work Programme is reported to the
Board and the Senior Leadership Group for action as required. A Governance structure
can be seen in Figure 1 which includes:

e Planning & Promoting Preventative Services;

e Locality Working;

e Home First and Patient Flow;

e Integration (older people/learning disabilities/carers/Integrated Family
Support/children with complex needs);

e Joint Commissioning;

e Wales Community Care and Information System.

Quarterly reports on implementation are provided to the Board against a work
programme. In addition the Board receives updates on other elements of the Act
implementation which are being led by a Local Authority Regional Steering Group. This
Group has been established to focus on the operational actions required to implement
the Act and includes a number of work streams which have been developed in
response to the requirements. Senior officers from Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan
Councils have been allocated responsibility for making progress in these areas and
provide updates and escalation reports to the Board as required.

3
Page 27


http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/RPB-Workshop-Report-25.09.17.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/RPB-Workforce-Workshop-Notes-271117.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/RPB-Workforce-Workshop-Notes-271117.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/our-priorities/social-enterprise-2/social-enterprise-events/our-prioritiessocial-enterprise-2social-enterprise-eventsunderstanding-procurement-deliver-innovative-public-services/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/about/what-we-do/rpb-work-programme/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/about/what-we-do/rpb-work-programme/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/about/what-we-do/rpb-work-programme/

INTIGRATIE HIA

i

e BOOLAL CATH PAETRIBSHIP

Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Governance Structure

'. City of Cardiff Council Cabinet Cardiff Public Services Board
Vale of Glamorgan Council Cabinet € - — - — - =+ — - — - o Regional Partnership Board | ="~ =" —" > Vale of Glamorgan Public
Cardiff & Vale UHB Board Services Board
Council Scrutiny Committees
C35C/GVS Boards y Y € -
|
W !
I
Strategic Leadership Group |€: =« =..—.. -3 IHSCDToc/Patient Fow
Scrutiny Group
F
| | | | ] 1 ]
Implementation Planning & Locality Integration Joint Welsh
of the SSWB Act Promoting Working Home First and - Older people with complex needs Commissioning Community Care
| Preventative - Patient Flow | -}---. andlongterm conditions, including |- - - and Pooled - - - o Information
Services dementia Budgets Solution (WCCIS)
U i i | - People with Learning Disabilities I
Q e . - Carers [including young carers)
% I sgui::aw&wm i mnmmm e : f':%':nd.v - Integrated Family Support fﬂ:a‘: Busees
N - sezarees Cpmrmacna | ] S Services Accommedation
- o ' v - Children with complex needs due - Family support
® [ maemms | [ t0 csabiliy o lness foceans
h 4

Community Engagement (including Let’s Talk) and Co-Production

A

Workforce Development

Strategic Commissioning

Financial and Performance Management

¥

Delivery supported by: Intermediate Care Fund / Primary Care Fund J Delivering Transformation Grant / Family Support Programmes

&
_______________________________________ Y
§ ¢ ¢

Development Programme

City of Cardiff Council Organisational

Vale of Glamorgan Council
Reshaping Services Programme

Cardiff & Vale UHB Shaping our
Future Wellbeing Strategy

May 2017



1.5 The work of the Integrated Health & Social Care Partnership is being driven by a
‘virtual Integration team’ consisting of senior joint appointments and identified senior
leads from statutory partners. Work is undertaken by this team to align funding across
the Partnership to reduce duplication and maximise efficiencies to ensure successful
outcomes are delivered. A small secretariat function is also in place to support the
work of the Regional Partnership Board.

1.6 As part of the Board’s development, the RPB undertook a development session on 12
June 2018 as part of its commitment to continuous improvement. This followed a
similar session in January 2017 which provided a baseline for the Board. Reflections
from the Board of the last 2 years can be seen below:

“I believe we have built a
degree of respect and trust
“I am encouraged by with each other whereby

the Partnership issues and concerns are
working, as well as the explored in an open and
commitment for transparent manner”

embracing change” V

“The RPB actively takes a learning
approach and is supportive of
innovative solutions supporting
greater alignment of service
responsibilities to better meet

needs”

“There has been an over
restriction to Part 9 issues only.

“It is hard to get everyone “I would like to see more integration of the Third | thin!( this is now op?enin'g up
on the same page with the Sector in strategic discussions between meetings and will enable the direction of
same amount of and being seen as an integral part of the solution the board to be truly whole
to difficult issues” system in the future”

knowledge which means

some partners can be at a
disadvantage at times”

/

“A constructive
environment but
will need to work at
faster pace if we
are to make the
progress needed”

— <C

“We need to focus more on CYP issues as it is
dominated by older people discussions - that said
we can’t do everything and it’s better to make
progress in small number of areas than dilute

effort”

/”There has been a sea
change in the years
I've been in post in
terms of partnership
but we need more
focus on scaling up
what works- we need “The RPB is continuing to mature
to be brave!” and is now in a good place to
review priorities. There needs to
be clarity of its relationship with
the PSB and who is driving which
“I believe the RPB is the best agenda”
example of partnership
working that I’'ve been y
involved with for more than a
decade”

“It would be good to have
feedback on how the RPB is
working and if things have
changed on the ground for the

users of the service”

“We need to continue to dismantle
the Health/Social Care silos to
improve services for the benefit of
the citizens of Wales, creating a safe

“Good chair that tries

“ i in raisi to bring all interests
Workshops particularly usefL.JI in raising a g and sustainable health service”
shared awareness of key topic areas and and elements
building relationships between Board together”

members” \
ge 29 >



http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Workshop-Report-120618.pdf

1.7 The contents of this report should be read alongside the Local Authority Director of
Social Services Reports in Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan which contain further detail
in relation to implementation of other aspects of the Social Services and Well-being
Act, including the Information, Advice and Assistance Service; Advocacy; Looked After
and Accommodated Children; Safeguarding and Workforce Development.

2.1

2.2

2.3

Delivering our Key Objectives and Priority Areas for Integration

The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Area Plan and Action Plan

Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan

was published in March 2018 and sets out our regional Area Plan for Care and SUpport Needs

Shaping Our Future Well-being

priorities and the detailed actions we will undertake over the W My o My Coiniy

2018-2023

next five years to meet the following 12 key care and support
needs identified in our Population Needs Assessment. These
needs were to:

Increase citizen involvement in shaping both preventative
and reactionary services

Promote and improve access to high quality and accessible
information and advice

Further support the development of opportunities that ¥ 4 c3sc ev0 Q==
enable social and economic well-being

Strengthen links between schools, vocational opportunities, apprenticeships,
further education and adult learning

Support people to make healthier lifestyle choices to reduce the prevalence of
unhealthy behaviours

Improve access to low level and specialist mental health care and support

Provide appropriate and safe housing and community environments, to enable
people to remain independent

Improve public transport, to enable better access to services, employment and
social activities

Develop services that prevent the need for more intensive care and support
Develop services to respond to existing and future care and support needs,
including those for carers

Improve support for people as they transition between services

Improve organisational working practices, to ensure that services help people to
achieve the outcomes they seek

The main focus of the Area Plan and Action Plan are the RPB’s responsibilities for the
integration of services in relation to:

Older people, including people with dementia
Children with complex needs

Learning disabilities and autism

Integrated Family Support Services

Adult and young carers

Where there are other care and support themes identified which are led by other
Partnerships and planning arrangements across the region, the Area Action Plan
signposts to the relevant reporting mechanisms to enable progress to be monitored.

Page 30 6



http://www.valeofglamorgan.gov.uk/Documents/_Committee%20Reports/Scrutiny-HLSC/2018/18-06-12/Annual-Report-of-the-Director-of-Social-Services-2017-2018-Challenge-Version-Appendix-1.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/about/what-we-do/cardiff-vale-glamorgan-area-plan/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/about/what-we-do/population-needs-assessment/

Our Priorities for Integration in 2018-2023 are:

1. Older People

Older Peaple. Including
Peaple with Dementia

OP1.1 Building on the First Point of Contact and Single Point of Access services, further
develop digital services along with easily accessible telephone, online and face-to-face
access points for the region, for both professionals and the public.

OP1.2 Develop resilient communities with local services, infrastructure and strong
community networks to meet local needs where older people live.

OP1.3 Develop and provide a range of future accommodation options to meet demand
and enable people to remain at home for as long as possible

OP1.4: Develop improved assessment, diagnosis and care planning practices which are
built upon genuine collaboration with older people and their carers and families, so
that their plans reflect what is important to them and achieves the outcomes they seek.

OP1.5 Develop Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan as a dementia friendly region

2. Children with
complex needs

| Chicrenwith Compiexeeas
3. Learning

Disability and

Autism

2

Learning Disability
and Autism

4. Integrated
Family Support
Services

Integrated Family Support Services

5. Adult and
Young Carers

Adult and Young Carers

CYP1.1 Improve provision for children and young people with Additional Learning
Needs

CYP1.2 Improve integrated provision for children with complex needs, including the
transition between children and adult services

LDA.1.1 People with learning disabilities are supported to maximise their
independence

LDA.1.2 People with learning disabilities are supported to play an active role in society
and engage in meaningful day time activities and employment or volunteering.

LDA.1.3 People with learning disabilities are valued and included, supported to have a
voice, and able to exercise choice and control over all aspects of their lives

LDA.1.4 People with learning disabilities are enabled to stay healthy and feel safe.

LDA.1.5 People with learning disabilities are supported to become lifelong learners.

LDA.1.6 Develop a new Integrated Autism Service which all agencies working in
integrated, multi-disciplinary ways will provide appropriate services for children, young
people and adults with an autism spectrum disorder, addressing their education,
health, employment, social interaction and emotional needs

IFSS1.1 Continue to provide an intensive intervention with families referred by
Children’s Services where there are serious child protection concerns as a result of
parental / carer substance misuse, domestic abuse or mental health.

IFSS1.2 Explore the extension of the Integrated Family Support Service model to include
other parental additional needs (e.g. learning disability) and consider how it can help
tackle adverse childhood experiences.

AYC1.1 Identify and implement a carer engagement model based on best practice

AYC1.2 Improve physical and emotional support for young carers, including emergency
and pre-planned respite and reducing the risk of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs)

AYC1.3 Improve physical and emotional support for adult carers, including emergency
and pre-planned respite

AYC1.4 Involve carers, including young carers, in the planning of hospital admission and
discharge if the person they care for is in hospital

AYC1.5 Provide easily accessible information to carers and relatives in a range of
formats and languages, through existing information points, such as primary care and
libraries.

AYC1.6 Raise awareness around caring and carers among public and health and social
care professionals, (e.g. adopting an approach similar to Making Every Contact Count),
to ensure that carers are identified as early as possible and all involved are aware of
their rights as a carer

Page 31 /




3. Key Achievements in 2017/18
[]

Older People, including People with Dementia

Older People, Including
Peaple with Dementia

3.1 There have been a number of key achievements in relation to older people and
People with dementia which are set out below.

First Point of Contact Service — Cardiff (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.2 The First Point of Contact (FPOC) is the initial stage of triage to Preventative Services
and Adult Social Care in Cardiff. Through the provision of information, advice and
assistance and using better outcomes conversations, this partnership between
Cardiff Council’s Preventative Services and Social Care looks to find alternative
solutions to social care and improve independent living and well-being outcomes.

33 Further triage can also include assessment with the social worker element of FPOC,
who can provide a more comprehensive assessment for alternative solutions and
determine eligibility for social care. As a result of skilled outcome focused
discussions, FPOC are able to identify solutions and link and direct clients to other
teams within preventative services where a particular intervention maybe required
such as Occupational Therapy, Day Opportunities, Independent Living Officers and
Disabled Facilities. However, a full understanding of a person’s well-being outcomes
and Independent Living needs cannot always be achieved over the phone and so a
home visit can also be required. Figure 2 below illustrates how the partnership

between FPOC and Adult Social Services has been able to reduce levels of social care to that
of 5 years ago.

Domiciliary Care & Direct Payments Older People,
Physical Disabilities & MHSOP 65+

Single Point of Access — Vale of Glamorgan Council and Cardiff and Vale UHB (*Supported
by ICF Funding)

Page 32 8



3.4

3.5

3.6

The Single Point of Access (SPoA) Service in Vale of Glamorgan provides signposting
and information and advice for a range of health, local authority and third sector
services. Call Handlers manage requests and triage where appropriate. They provide
Information, Advice and Assistance and facilitate assessment and access to the
Community Resource Service, Social Work assessment, and District Nursing. Age
Connects is also located within the Customer Contact Centre through a partnership
delivery structure. The objectives of the service are to:

e Reduce unscheduled admissions to hospital

e Assist with providing solutions to accelerate discharge from hospital
e Support delivery of the information, advice and assistance service

e Develop preventative services and trial new models of working

e Facilitate access to reablement for service users to independence

e Support development of greater integrated health and social care

e Deliver prudent health and social care

The SPoA builds upon the Vale of Glamorgan Integrated Locality Structure already in
place, which included joint appointments with areas of control spanning Vale of
Glamorgan Council and UHB services enabling swift integrated decision making. A
Third Sector Broker (Age Connects) is also co-located directly within this service.

Table 1 below outlines the various outcomes delivered by the SPoA service during
2017/18.

SPoA Service Activity Measures 2017/18 Total

Number of district nursing calls 101,078
Number of Vale Community Resource Service (VCRS)/Elderly Care 394
Assessment Unit (ECAS) calls
Number of VCRS referrals 3,096
Number of ECAS referrals (Vale) 210
Number of ECAS referrals (Cardiff from Nov 2017) 296
Number of Triage Team referrals 7,202

e Number resolved in-house -7,032
Number of Third Sector Broker referrals received 217
Number of podiatry calls (Cardiff from 24/05/17) 16,795
Number of pieces of equipment ordered 2,451
Number of district nursing hours saved by SpoA ordering 410
Number of district nursing hours saved as a result of Triage 49
Number of hospital discharges 513
Number of adults services enquiries resolved by C1V 5,260

Home First and Patient Flow (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.7

The Get Me Home work stream is a newly formed group, one of three work streams
which underpin the work programme associated with the UHB’s Unscheduled Care

Page 33 S




Programme Board. The Get Me Home work stream has absorbed the previous work
programme of the Delayed Transfers of Care Operational (DToC) Group, along with
additional service improvement projects, and also continues to validate and sign off
the monthly DToC figures prior to submission to Welsh Government.

3.8 The scope of the Work Group includes:

Improving discharge arrangements to achieve the required predicted date of
discharge to an agreed destination

Improving quality, efficiency and effectiveness of services by redesigning
pathways to meet the changing needs of patients as well as the clinical, service
and workforce challenges

Ensuring alignment of services across Clinical Boards and partner organisations
Monitoring performance improvements and recommending remedial action
when adequate performance is not being achieved

3.9 The Partnership has previously agreed its own delayed transfer of care target of 82
patients: this maintains at least a 25% reduction on the number of patients delayed in
June 2015. It has also agreed to reduce the number of bed days lost to 2,305, a 25%
reduction on the June 2015 position.

As of the March 2018 census, the total number of delayed patients is 47. This is
a reduction of 11 delayed patients from March 2017.

The total number of delayed patients over the age of 75 for March 2018 is 24
compared with the March 2017 position of 34.

The number of bed days lost for March 2018 is 1,124 compared with ¢.1,400 in
March 2017.

Figure 3 — Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Delayed Transfer of Care Trends

W cardiff

— 25% reduction Jun 15 ~~ 25% reduction Feb 15

AllDTOCs for April = 48 Delayed Transfers of Care Beddays Lost Each Month - Last 18 Months

O vale B out of Area/NFAbode . i ) -, i
[ rsedicine services B mMental Health Services [l Specialist Services

(] Surgical Services —= 25% reduction on Jun 15

2500

2000

N I N TN I I A o I TN B B )
M A A R R = AT e o o
FEF IR IV LRSS FFT L S FF LS @ TP P AL S F TS
Last 18 Months of DTOCS Census Date

1500

QDA D R e @ QAP

3.10 This positive progress can also be seen in national comparisons with other regions
across Wales. The Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan region has maintained a steady
reduction in the rate of delayed transfers of care and is currently ranked as the third
lowest rate in Wales for both non mental health and mental health delays.

Page 34 10



Figure 4 — Delayed Transfers of Care by Health Board

Non Mental Health Delayed Transfers of Care Rate by Health Board

257

20+

# Aneurin Bevan LHB
#* Powys LHB

& Betsi UHB

* Cardiff & Vale HB
* Abertawe LHB

* Cwm Taff LHB

# Hywel Dda LHB

15—

10—

T T T T T T T T T T T
Jun 17 Jul 17 Aug 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18

12 Month Trend

Mental Health Delayed Transfers of Care Rate by Health Board

# Abertawe LHB

® Cwm Taff LHB

* Cardiff & Vale HB
* Powys LHB

& Betsi UHB

# Hywel Dda LHB

* Aneurin Bevan LHB

I I I I I I I I
Jun 17 Jul 17 Aug 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Mov 17 Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18
12 Month Trend

3.11 Discharge to Assess residential models have continued to
be piloted in both Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan. In Ty
Llandaff, Cardiff, Community Resource Team colleagues in
North West Cardiff have worked with social care
colleagues and a private sector nursing home to pilot
a Community Assessment Unit (CAU). This 8 bedded short

stay unit is based within the Ty Llandaff Nursing Home and
provides temporary accommodation for patients who are
medically stable and no longer need to remain in hospital,
but who still require 24 hour care prior to returning to
their own home.

3.12 The CAU has cared for 190 patients and maintained
a 97% occupancy rate. 100% of individuals have received a more appropriate
assessment of their ongoing needs. Initial studies indicate that 58% of patients
required less ongoing support from the Community Resource Team than was originally
predicted by ward staff. The Unit was shortlisted for an NHS Wales Award for
‘Working Seamlessly Across Organisations’ in September 2017.

Page 35 1



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

‘The Bay’ Reablement Unit, Vale of Glamorgan, is a 6 bedded unit providing a bridge
between hospital discharge and home for those who require additional time in a
supportive environment to maximise their independence. The Unit is located at the Ty
Dyfan Residential Home where the in-house team work closely within the Vale’s
Community Resource Service (VCRS).

By increasing the confidence, physical and mental strength of each individual, the Unit
can demonstrate a significant reduction in ongoing support requirements once the
service user returns home. By ensuring that the care provided to the person is
appropriately based upon need, savings of c.£500,000 per annum have been achieved.
The Unit was shortlisted for a Local Government Chronicle (LGC) Award in

March 2018.

Welsh Government Minister for Children, Older People and Social Care, Huw Irranca-
Davies, visited Ty Dyfan and commented positively on the work of the staff involved in
the Reablement Unit regarding their innovative work.

Together, the Ty Llandaff and The Bay units have supported 234 individuals with
access to reablement support and achieved an overall bed day saving of £968,000.

Accommodation Solution services have continued to be developed across the region,

with Support Officers working closely with hospital staff to expedite discharges

wherever possible. The team is supported by the provision of step down/step up

accommodation for short term use, and also a Rapid Response and Adaptation service

provided by Care & Repair. As of March 2018:

e 422 referrals have been made to the Housing Solutions Team since April 2017
from a variety of ward and hospitals across the region

e 166 patient discharges have been assisted directly by the team, with 148 being
listed as Delayed Transfers of Care

e Provision of 8 step down flats have been used by 36 patients as interim
accommodation following a hospital stay

e An estimated 2,278 bed days have been avoided through the use of step down
accommodation over the 2017/18 financial year

e This equates to a cost avoidance saving of £639,875

ICF funded Step-down
accommodation at Minton
Court, Tremorfa, Cardiff

12




Dementia (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

The Partnership has a multi-agency steering group to oversee the delivery of the ten
year Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Dementia Strategy 2018-2028. The Plan was
developed for people with dementia and their carers, in order that they can live well
with dementia.

The eight strategic objectives of the Plan are:

Dementia is everyone’s business.

The risk of dementia will be reduced and there will be a timely diagnosis.
Access to services will be equitable.

Services will be fully coordinated.

Services will be delivered with kindness and compassion.

Support will be centred on Primary Care.

Carers will be cared for.

Crises will be avoided.

©®NoUhkwWwN R

Dementia Friendly Communities is a programme developed by the Alzheimer’s
Society which facilitates the creation of dementia friendly communities across the
UK. The programme aims to engage organisations, local businesses, front-line staff
and members of the public with the aim of sharing the responsibility for ensuring
people with dementia feel understood, valued and able to contribute to their
communities.

Throughout 2017/18, the priority areas of both the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan
strategic groups were to support the delivery of Dementia Friends information
sessions in local communities and within workplaces, and to support local
organisations to work towards implementing identified dementia-friendly actions
specific to their remits and environments.

During 2017/2018, Cowbridge joined Barry and Dinas Powys as communities in the
Vale who are recognised as working towards becoming dementia-friendly.
Additionally, a new steering group was established in Penarth, with a view to
working towards becoming dementia-friendly. Initial dementia-friendly activity also
took place in Rhoose and Llantwit Major, with a series of Dementia Friends
information sessions. Cardiff was also recognised as working towards becoming a
Dementia Friendly City, having built on the learning from a pilot held in Cardiff West
and ongoing work within Neighbourhood Partnership Areas.

As of March 2018, there were 19,280 people trained as Dementia
Friends in Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan. A growing number of

organisations across a wide variety of sectors are in the process of ."' L
working towards becoming dementia-friendly, including: a variety of Nementia
Cardiff Council departments, Glamorgan Cricket Club, Chapter Arts "i_"rf-_,l'l;:,__':'

Centre, Marks and Spencer stores, Cardiff and Vale UHB, National
Museum of Wales, Race Equality First and Barry Memorial Hall.

Page 37 13


http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/1143/Dementia%20Strategy%20C%20and%20V%202018-2028%20FINAL%20%28003%29.pdf

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

Rondel House provides a day service, 5 days per week (Monday to Friday) for older
people living at home with dementia, physical disability and frailty, who have
difficulties in accessing normal community activities. Users of the service have
assessed needs of benefiting from a day service to provide positive social interaction,
stimulating activities and to reduce loneliness and isolation. The service also
provides a welcome regular respite break to informal carers, as part of an agreed
support plan.

Some of the outcomes delivered during 2017/18 include:

e Anincreased number of referrals for those living with dementia

e Of the 120 optimum places available per week (24 per day), an average of 102
places were allocated each week

e Fortnightly art/craft sessions were provided by Nexus on a Monday

e The ‘LIFT Chair Exercise Programme’ was delivered on Tuesdays

e The ‘Action for Elders Balanced Lives Programme’ was delivered on Wednesdays

e Increased awareness of Rondel House with key partner agencies, including:
Dementia Friendly Vale, Cardiff and Vale Dementia Strategy Group, Alzheimer’s
Society, Age Connect, local authority ‘Supporting People’ and social care teams,

Hafod, Crossroads and Nexus.
Rread About M,
In response to at least three person-centred care tools being '\"J
used in Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan for people with
dementia, the Dementia Champions in the UHB created the
‘Read about Me’ toolkit based on other toolkits adopting a
person-centred approach. The idea was to ensure that a
universal toolkit was being used across the region, so that
service users and carers would have to tell their story only once
in their journey.

The ‘Read about Me’ toolkit was tested in four clinical areas and received very
positive feedback from carers and staff. It was launched in October 2017 at the
Nursing and Midwifery conference. It has also been shared with primary and
community care and social care for implementation across the Cardiff and the Vale
of Glamorgan region.

oV those ny,
(o]

John’s Campaign was founded after the death of Dr John Gerrard & &

in November 2014 by Nicci Gerrard and Julia Jones. John had & %
been diagnosed with Alzheimer’s in his mid-70s. During a five- Z P
week hospital admission, visits from his family were severely % C§

restricted due to an infection outbreak. His family described his % G

. . ‘QOf e\(\\
decline as catastrophic. Ay am y

Page 38 14



3.28

3.29

3.30

The core proposals of the campaign are:

e Carers of people with dementia should have unrestricted access if the person
for whom they care is admitted to hospital. This must include staying overnight
if necessary.

e Carers should not just be allowed but should be welcomed. They should be
included throughout the patient’s treatment if they are willing and able and the
patient is in agreement, or appears comfortable with this.

A working group was established with representation from a variety of clinical
boards to establish current practice. Whilst early discussions indicated that the
principles of ‘Johns Campaign’ were generally being adopted, a staff and carer survey
highlighted some inconsistencies across clinical areas. From this work, the ‘Four Ps’
were developed in collaboration with carers and staff, which were incorporated into
a poster and more detailed leaflet:

1. Priority — early identification of carers.

2. Principles — ensuring a carer voice, and that they are informed and
communicated with.

3. Our Promises — that carers can continue their caring role of they wish e.g. in
mealtimes, personal care and medicines management.

4. Carers Please — respect other patients’ privacy, ward issues and tell us if you
need our help and support.

The campaign pilot commenced late February 2018 across four of the Health Board’s
sites on seven wards, involving three clinical areas. Two staff members, a registered
nurse and a healthcare support worker were identified as Carers Support Leads
within the clinical areas.

Older People Preventative Services (*Supported by ICF Funding)

Independent Living

3.31

3.32

3.33

The Independent Living Service (ILS) provides a full range of support in Cardiff to
help people remain safe and independent, keeping people active and healthy for
longer, preventing or delaying the need for care or unnecessary hospital admissions.

Independent Living Officers (ILO), a team of multi-skilled visiting officers, complete
holistic assessments in a client’s home. In this environment, consideration can be
given to all the factors that contribute to independence and a sense of well-being,
maintaining a focus on “what matters to me”. Complex cases can also be referred to
ILS direct from partners in health, social care and the third sector.

The various outcomes achieved by the ILO Visiting Team can be seen in Figure 5.

Page 39 15


https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/resident/Housing/Independent-Living-Services/Pages/default.aspx

3.34

3.35

Figure 6 — Cardiff Day Opportunities Referrals

Day Opportunities have also been developed as part Figure .5-.(.)utcomes.delivered by ILS
of the service, which represent a move away from the Visiting Team in 2017/18
traditional Day Centre Model to one that supports people

to remain part of their community through the provision INDEPENDENT LIVING

of support, short-term assistance and targeted VISITING TEAM

intervention. These interventions not only encourage

community cohesion, but improve well-being at home. 98% ::'::f:'?’t"""'t."t':cili‘:‘“' surices
of life

As shown in Figure 6 below, the Day Opportunities Team SRR LR

saw a 71% increase in the number of referrals received in S8 52 8 8 S £

March 2018 compared to 12 months prior. Clertsshelotistle o emsn @) £y @

independantly

Number of Day Opportunities Team e
Referrals Received 2017/18

identified

Preventative
interventions

People out of
social isolation

Assisted with blue
badge parking

People removed
from fuel poverty

Part of Preventative Services

80

60

40

20

0
Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

3.36 The Joint Equipment Service (JES) and JES Occupational Therapist utilises a pooled
budget arrangement to deliver an efficient, integrated equipment loan service to
residents of Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan. The service enables timely discharge
from hospital by providing equipment to support discharge.

3.37 In2017/18:

e The JES arranged 35,450 deliveries and 21,293 collections

e 77% of these deliveries were made within 5 working days

e There was a 33% reduction in adult Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) completion
times (235 days to 172 days)

e 3,807 JES Occupational Therapist referrals were received, which represents a
10% increase in referrals compared to 16/17

e 1,164 DFG assessments were completed

e 99% of these cases were assessed within a 4 week waiting time

Page 40 16



3.38

The integration of Day Opportunities, JES,
Occupational Therapy, Disabled Facilities Service
and a team of social workers, or the adoption of a
whole systems approach, has allowed for a
constant exchange of knowledge and expertise
between teams. This ensures that high quality and
timely information advice and assistance is
provided to the citizen. For the first time, there is a , ]
real focus on supporting older people and what The Independent Living Centre, or 'Smart
matters to them, with Preventative Services House', in Llanishen welcomed the
providing better communication across service areas Minister for Children, Older People and
and partners and better access to services than ever Social Care on 31st January 2018
before.

Goodgym

3.39

3.40

It's been a successful year for Goodgym Cardiff, which initiated its first run in
summer 2017 after receiving seed funding from the Integrated Care Fund (ICF). By
the end of 2017/18, the Cardiff Group carried out 57 group runs, with a total of
1,035 attendances, 16 coach visits to isolated older people, and 34 missions to
help community groups. Work has already begun building links within the Vale of
Glamorgan, which will continue to develop over the next year.

Cardiff Goodgym running group

Partnership working with the third sector to deliver preventative services across the
region has continued to develop. During 2017/18, GVS and C3SC managed the
distribution of some ICF monies on behalf of the Partnership. This included:

e |ICF Third Sector Prevention Intervention Fund: £27,000

e |CF Third Sector Capital Investment Fund: £50,000
e Integrated Autism Service ICF Third Sector Small Grant Scheme: £35,000

Page 41 17


https://www.goodgym.org/areas/cardiff/2017

3.41

3.42

Examples of outcomes delivered as a result of these funds include:

e Innovate Trust purchasing 71 Intelligent Personal Assistants to support people
with learning disabilities to live independently at home

e  Race Equality First delivering 16 well-being sessions in the Vale of Glamorgan for
32 ethnic minority women aged over 50 years of age

e The Friendly Trust supporting 13 unpaid carers to complete Lasting Power of
Attorney forms.

e One third sector organisation successfully gained Lottery funding to continue
their provision as a result of the evidence gained from the ICF funded project.

e Athird sector organisation was able to purchase specialist equipment for their
gardening project, enabling all-weather sessions for people with autism of any
age.

GVS and C3SC, in collaboration with the two local authorities and the health board,
also updated the regional Directory of Services for Older People and Directory of
Services for Carers across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan.

g3 C3sSC

Directory of Services for Older
People in the Vale of Glamorgan
and Cardiff

rmation for carers in the Vale of

Find out more in this directory about support,
advice and information for older people

Revised Jamiary 918

Updated Ouc 2817

GVS Directory of Services for Older People Partnership Directory of Services for Carers

Joint Commissioning and Pooled Budgets (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.43

3.44

3.45

The Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 (Part 9 Partnership Arrangements
Regulations) requires the establishment of pooled funds in relation to:

e The exercise of care accommodation functions by 2018

e The exercise of family support functions

e Functions that will be exercised jointly as a result of the Population Needs
Assessment

An integrated approach is already in place in relation to the Integrated Family
Support Service across the region, along with other funding such as for the Joint

Equipment Store and Integrated Care Fund.

From 1% April 2018 a non-risk sharing pooled budget for older people’s care home
accommodation has been in operation across the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan

Page 42 18


http://www.gvs.wales/media/5957/directory-of-services-for-older-people-jan-18.pdf
http://www.gvs.wales/media/5956/carers-directory-2017-update.pdf
http://www.gvs.wales/media/5956/carers-directory-2017-update.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/151218part9en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/151218part9en.pdf

3.46

3.47

region. The total pooled budget equates to approximately £46m per annum, and is
being managed by Cardiff Council in the first year on behalf of the three statutory
organisations.

Alongside this, the partners have been working together to produce an outcomes-
focused joint specification and common contract for care home accommodation
services across the region. These will be shared with stakeholders as part of a formal
consultation process later this year.

Considerable work has been undertaken over the past year to support the joint
commissioning of older people’s services on a regional basis. Following the
comprehensive mapping of existing older people services and expenditure and the
development of a statement of strategic intent in 2016/17, a Joint Market Position
Statement and Commissioning Strategy was published in January 2018. The strategy
was developed around four key ‘design principles’, which partners are expected to
consider and support when developing future services:

kMe, My Home, My COW‘

Cardiff and Vale of gan Market and C gy
Care and Support Services for Older People
2017 - 2022

WHAT MATTERS TO ME SUSTAINABLE AND PRUDENT

USE OF RESOURCES

,M Promoting prevention and early
intervention, and developing quality
outcomes and value for money solutions

which meet care and support needs

1 Listening and working with people in
need of care and support to jointly
find solutions to meet their needs

HOME FIRST AVOIDING HARM, WASTE AND

VARIATION

—

o Enablll'ng peogle to live at hg;ne, or
1 as close to home as possible, in ; 3
‘:' accommodation appropriate to their To ensure hal Ihs g;ﬁé’g’s’ S

needs and where they can live well,
thrive and remain independent

Four ‘design principles’ from Joint Market Position Statement and Commissioning Strategy

Page 43 19


http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/MPS_English-051217-Final.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/MPS_English-051217-Final.pdf

Housing with Care Research (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

3.52

Within the Market Position Statement, the RPB committed to “Reviewing local
housing strategies in light of current provision and developing a joint regional
accommodation with care and support strategy”. As part of that commitment it was
agreed that the RPB needed to undertake an evaluation of the level of
accommodation with care and support required now and in the future.

In order to complete this work, the Housing Learning and Improvement Network
(LIN) were commissioned by the Partnership to undertake a review, using funding
provided by the Welsh Government’s Integrated Care Fund.

The findings of the research revealed that the most prevalent type of older people’s
housing is sheltered housing and other age designated housing in the social rented
sector. The current private retirement housing provision also provides some mix of
housing choices for different equity and income groups. However, it was also
reported that there is very limited extra care housing/housing with care provision
when compared with the prevalence of residential care beds.

The research also highlighted a number of challenges regarding current housing in
relation to a low proportion being wheelchair accessible and approximately 50% of
older people schemes having a lift across Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan.

The Final Report sets out a number of recommendations for the RPB to consider.
These include:

e Further development of contemporary ‘care ready’ sheltered/retirement
housing which is without care on site but enables people to age at home;

e Mainstream housing developments to include well designed units which appeal
to older people and which promote inter-generational housing;

e Increase the delivery of housing with care options including extra care and extra
care ‘lite’ which may include smaller scale new build developments and
redesigning some appropriate sheltered housing schemes to include a ‘care
hub';

e Develop a comprehensive information and advice service for social housing
tenants and homeowners in relation to adaptations and housing options;

o Scale up the development of 'step-down' housing based models of care to
support timely discharge and promote reablement;

e To work with the Welsh Government in relation to affordable housing targets
and the potential for guidance in relation to older people housing;

e To work with care providers to consider alternative service models to residential
care, including provision of nursing care.

Specialist Dementia Day Care Services at Grand Avenue, Cardiff.

Page 44 20


http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Assessment-of-older-people-accommodation-final-report.pdf

Children with Complex Needs

Children with Complex Needs

Disabilities Futures Programme (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.53

3.54

3.55

The Disability Futures Programme has enabled an enhanced multi-agency workforce
to be established. This will pilot an

. . e . . o H . .
integrated, co-ordinated approach for i\?r(/ Integrating Disability Services Project
children with complex needs and y
people with learning disabilities to
. . . Vision for disabled children
reduce waste and variation. The pilot e reeng peraié sond i
coordinated services, tha
takes a ‘proof of concept approach’ to H-r.l'.:.'.s:dm::':mf.d'
test this way of working to enhance el
those most in need across

the co-ordination of services for users. Cardiff and the Vale of
It also identifies opportunities to
reduce duplication across services
areas and increase the capacity of )
existing staff through group working <
with children and young people with
complex health care needs and in receipt of care and support.

Glamorgan

The programme is now in full swing and some examples of the work so far are
provided below.

Access to first level services have been enhanced, supporting individuals with
learning difficulties and their carers to engage in their communities without the need
for statutory support. This service provides ‘light touch’ disability expertise and early
assessments within existing First Point of Contact/Single Point of Access (Information
and Advice) arrangements for disabled children, young people and their families
across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan. To date:

e 465 referrals have been made for proportionate assessment (Baseline = 200)

e 95% of families feel better informed (Baseline = 80%)

e 100% of families feel less isolated (Baseline = 80%).

The service has demonstrated real cost avoidance outcomes: of all the contacts and referrals
received in 2017-18, only 1 has proceeded to the Child Health and Disability Team for further
assistance.

The Programme has also provided 1:1 and group sessions for parents of children and young
people who have received a diagnosis of Attention-Deficit / Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD).
School sessions have been provided to staff working with children with ADHD with
awareness of effective strategies to use and improve awareness of the condition. By 31"
March 2018, 40 parents had taken part in the group programme and 29 had been supported
on a 1:1 basis. 100% of parents reported feeling better equipped to meet the needs of their
child, demonstrated an improvement in social relationships for their child and in their
emotional wellbeing.

Page 45 21



3.56 Services have also been piloted for parents with Learning Disabilities, offering parenting
interventions of up to 24 weeks in duration to parents with a learning difficulty or disability.
This intervention is an option available to social workers seeking to prevent the family
escalating to the court arena.

To date:

e 40 parents have been supported (Baseline = 20)

e 22 families have been supported (Baseline = 20)

e 65% of referrers identified a reduced level of risk following direct intervention
(Baseline = 65%)

e 78% of parents demonstrated an improved outcome in their parenting skills
(Baseline =70%)

e 83% of children were identified as being appropriately placed following the
intervention (Baseline = 100%)

Learning Disability and Autism

Enhanced Day Opportunities for Adults with Learning Disabilities (*Supported by ICF
Funding)

3.57 The Disability Futures Programme also supports adults with learning disabilities
including people with complex behaviours, people with complex health needs,
people with autism and people on the dementia pathway. This service seeks to
reduce the need for new adults accessing costly out of area placements by providing
required day opportunity services closer to home. The service has been further
supported by ICF capital funding to refurbish existing premises for the service in
Tremorfa. To date, 9 adults have accessed day opportunities and 59 staff have been
training in providing intervention.

Enhanced Review and Enablement(*Supported by ICF Funding)
3.58 This workstream reviews current service provision and enables adults receiving
packages of care to be supported in a timely and proportionate way in their local

communities with minimal intervention from formal statutory service. The service
works alongside the Cardiff and Vale University Health Board to support those

Page 46 22



service users who are being discharged from hospital. Furthermore, the team liaise
with a number of third sector and voluntary organisations to support those service
users who transfer in and out of the service.

3.59 Links have been strengthened between review function workers and support
planners across both Local Authorities to access mainstream activities. The service
utilises the best placed professional resource to enable access to services and
identify any triggers. Furthermore, the service works closely with Support Planners
resulting in significant improvement in outcomes.

3.60 To date, 227 reviews have been completed with a further 103 currently underway.
30 cases were stepped up to case management whilst 53 were stepped down. The
work has strengthened the link between review function workers and support
planners, thereby empowering the greatest number of individuals, where a need has
been identified, to access mainstream activities within their own communities rather
than relying on resourced interventions from the local authority or specialist
providers. Furthermore, the links have resulted in improved networks, skill building
and quality of life.

Supported Accommodation (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.61 These pilots are testing the efficacy of providing accommodation closer to home for

Young Adults requiring supported accommodation:

e The Cardiff Supported Accommodation Pilot provides review, planning and
support for adults with learning disabilities and complex needs to live closer to
home. 45 young people have been supported to date.

e The Vale of Glamorgan Closer to Home project mirrors the Cardiff pilot to ensure
that this is a model of accommodation support which can offer viability across
the region. 2 young people have been supported to date. The service is part of a
‘Closer to Home’ working group provides advice and support for people to move
closer to home from out of county placements and high cost residential
placements. This working group has representation from health colleagues as
well as specialists in this area.

Respite Provision (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.62 This service provides respite care that is bespoke and
proportionate to the needs of people with learning disabilities
and the needs of their carers:

e A5 bedded house providing short term, long term and
emergency supported accommodation, by either 1:1 or 2:1
Specialist care. :

e Vale of Glamorgan Adult Placement Scheme providing both Nﬁgﬁmﬁﬁzﬁ%
short term and long term care within a family-based setting.  [Rf i e oty

The Scheme can also offer other kinds of services such as
sessional support (day time or evening) primarily to introduce service users to
Adult Placement and emergency supported accommodation. So far, this
provision that has been accessed by 25 adults.

Page 47 23



Joint Commissioning

3.63

The Partnership has begun work developing our first regional, integrated strategy for
adult learning disability services. We are working together with people with a
learning disability, their families, carers and the third and independent sectors to
produce a clear direction for the planning and delivery of adult learning disability
services across the region over the next five years. Consultation on the draft strategy

will begin later this year.

Integrated Autism Service (*Supported by ICF Funding)

3.64

3.65

3.66

3.67

The Integrated Autism Service (IAS) was launched on the 27" September 2017 but
has been operational in part from the beginning of September 2016. The service is
multi-disciplined and includes Local Authority Community Workers as well as University
Health Board staff: Lead Clinical Psychologist, Autism Specialist Nurses, Occupatlonal

Therapists, Speech and Language Therapists and a
Dietitian. The Team bring together their component
services to function as one integrated service. This
means that post diagnostic assessments and
interventions can now be offered jointly by a clinician
and support staff as appropriate, and this work has
expanded to include a number of groups as well as
individual interventions.

The IAS Clinical Lead has developed the diagnostic processes within the team and the
diagnostic clinic is being expanded to include the additional clinical staff in the IAS, as well as

working closely with the existing diagnosticians in the University
Health Board (UHB). Although in the early stages this has already
enabled the IAS to offer an increased number of assessments
thus reducing waiting times. Clinicians undertaking the
diagnostic assessments within the IAS will make specific
recommendations following completion of the assessment
based on the information gathered. If an individual is diagnosed
through a Community Mental Health Team, they are referred to
the IAS for post-diagnostic support. At the end of the financial
year the IAS had accepted 44 new referrals for diagnostic
assessment and received an additional 117 new referrals for
support. The waiting time for diagnostic assessment has been
reduced by 2 months to 7 months so far.

The service continues to offer information, advice and
assistance to people with ASD, their carers and family. This

SO YOUR EI‘IVIrOnment
Give clear directions, photos, or a map to

NEXT PATIENT  nelp tina v
HAS AUTISM? ~ |

Making
reasonable
adjustments

Communication

Using the phone is often difficult for
autistic people so check r\u\v besl 10
etters

Be punctual!

Don't make last ots o r the person to
minute changes T questios & nly ask one thing at
or cancellations!
ne new is very stressful

1
Be patient! ficult. The person

ly even though they

Say what you
mean & do
what you say!

Procucedny the Intsgatea Autim Senvice 2018 CAVIASSUAS NG 020 21526290

includes signposting as well as practical support to link in with the third and public

sector recourses local to them.

The service has established links with the Neurodevelopment Service, Child
Psychology and the ASD Education Outreach teams in both Cardiff and the Vale of
Glamorgan as well as associated networks for children and parents. It has been
agreed that service provision to this client group will be delivered collaboratively,

Page 48

24



3.68

avoiding duplication of existing provision and to reduce gaps in services.
Furthermore, the team are providing telephone support and signposting to parents
and carers of children. To date, 38 parents of children have received support and advice.

In 2018-19, the Service will continue to embed itself as a fundamental support for
people with Autism and their carers. Objectives include:

e Embedding the diagnostic pathway;

e Supporting the delivery of Autistic Spectrum Disorder and Mental Health
Training;

e Continuing to develop the group programme offered to include Early Bird Plus,
Incredible Years, Teen Lives, Emotion Management, Problem Solving, Carers’
workshops, Get Cooking and other appropriate group programmes;

e Embedding requirements of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
as part of the assessment process;

e Continuing to establish and further develop links with colleagues in existing
Mental Health, Learning Disability services, third sector and other services
providing joint work, consultation and training as needed;

e Developing research links with key partners to progress knowledge and learning
regarding Autism.

Integrated Family Support Service

3.69

3.70

3.71

Integrated Family Support Services

The Integrated Family Support Service (IFST) comprises of a highly skilled, multi-
disciplinary team working with families with complex needs where children are at
risk of significant harm. Families referred to the IFST are experiencing crisis in
relation to parental alcohol/substance misuse; domestic abuse or mental health. The
IFST deliver a therapeutic, intensive intervention with families over a 4-6 week
period. The purpose of the intervention is to reduce the level of risk and ensure that
children can safely remain in the care of their parents/carers. During and following
the intensive intervention, goals are set with the family and reviewed over a 12-
month period with booster sessions completed when required.

The IFST also has a leading role in shaping practice across Childrens Services and the
wider workforce, providing advice, consultation and facilitating evidence based
training.

A 2017/2018 objective was to ensure compliance with the Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act 2014 in accepting referrals where parental alcohol/substance
misuse, mental health or domestic abuse is present. Due to the complexity of needs
experienced by families referred to the IFST all three presenting issues are often
prevalent, also referred to as the ‘toxic trio’. This objective has been successful in
relation to referrals received from the Vale of Glamorgan. Due to capacity issues, the
priority for Cardiff has been to continue work with parental alcohol and substance
misuse in 2017/18. The criteria for referrals will then be expanded to include
domestic abuse and mental health in 2018/19. It is noticeable that the complexity of

Page 49 25



3.72

3.73

cases referred to the IFST is increasing, requiring intervention with families where
children are on the cusp of entering care.

The IFST received 95 referrals (50 from Cardiff and 45 from the Vale of Glamorgan).
52 families were allocated to the IFST following initial assessment. These figures are
below the projected target (120 referrals: 70 allocated) but is reflective of staff
absence. The IFSS actively promote the sharing of referrals between Cardiff and Vale
of Glamorgan to limit the impact of staff absences upon families.

The quality of service is measured using the goals
set with families and the distance travelled over the
12 month intervention. The IFST works with families
to create clear, measurable and attainable goals in
line with the referring social worker’s expectation
for outcomes of the intervention to ensure the
children’s safety within the home. Families will generally work towards an average
of two goals of which at least one will focus on reducing or stopping problematic
substance misuse. The aim is to achieve a success rate of 75% of goals achieving a
score of ‘0’ or higher. This is where ‘0’ represents a good enough outcome for
children to remain safely at home. The IFST outcomes have consistently exceed the
projected target evidencing that IFST intervention results in positive outcomes
experienced by families.

Figure 7 — Improvements of Goal Outcomes in Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan

The Improvement of goal outcomes from when The Improvement of goal outcomes from when
initially set to the end of the intervention- Cardiff initially set to the end of the intervention- Vale

Goaksa

Maimenance 1 Month 3 Menth & Month 12 Month
Mesting

— Goal Actual — Goal Actus

3.74

Table 2 below is indicative of the success of IFST in supporting families for children to
remain safely at home. The figures show 95% of children remained living at home;
38% of children were de-registered and 54% of children no longer required Childrens
Services involvement. A minority of children were accommodated with IFSS
involvement being integral to decision making.

Page 50 26



Table 2 — ISFT Performance Outcomes

2017 - 2018 Cardiff No % Vale No %
No of children de-registered: 27 36 21 40
No gf families closed to Social 91 58 14 52
services:

No of children returned home 2 3 0 0
No of children accommodated: 6 8 3 6
No of children placed on the

CPR: 1 1 1 2
No of children staying at home 71 95 49 94

The pooled budget for IFST is attached as Appendix 2.

Adult and Young Carers

Adult and Young Carers

3.75 The Carers Information and Consultation Strategy Annual Progress Report was
published in May 2017 showing the range of developments in place for carers across

the region. ‘ |
=5

3.76 Later in the same year, the Vale Central GP Cluster achieved
the Bronze Accreditation for Carers. This scheme \
is being developed locally across Cardiff and the Vale of
Glamorgan and includes criteria that GP Practices need to
achieve to obtain recognition for their support to carers and
their families. The focus is upon providing staff and patients
with relevant and up-to-date information about caring and for
carers.

3.77 Inrelation to younger carers, the Partnership was pleased to
announce Barry Comprehensive School as the first school in
Wales to receive the Young Carers in Schools Programme
Basics Award. The award includes assigning a lead member of
staff to understand young carers and their needs, and
developing and maintaining a pupil notice board and
online information highlighting young carer’s issues.

3.78 Barry Comprehensive’s operational lead Sue Neilson, supports the young carers in
the school. Ms Nielson said: “We are really proud of our young carers, who do so
much to support their families. The Programme has enabled us to identify the young
carers within the school, putting in place a variety of positive measures to support
them both in and out of school.”

3.79 AlJoint Adult / Young Carers Workstream Group has now been established with
relevant colleagues from across the region. Initial work is focusing upon developing a

Page 51 27



3.80

3.81

Position Statement on the current services in place for carers to inform work plans.
The Workstream has also been asked to incorporate requirements identified within
the Area Plan in regard to Carers.

The initial work plan includes the implementation of various Task Groups to:

e review and prioritise current performance indicators,

e ensure the development of a future vision that complies with both national and
local requirements,

e bring together relevant funding streams.

Following a presentation at the RPB Development Workshop on Preventative
Interventions, it has been agreed that the region should consider the potential of
joining the Ffrind | mi campaign and extending the service to cover Cardiff and the
Vale of Glamorgan.

Integrated Care Fund

3.82

3.83

3.84

The aim of the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) is to drive and enable integrated working
between social services, health, housing and the third and independent sectors
across services throughout Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan. A signed
Memorandum of Understanding has been agreed by partners and the ICF budget is
being managed as a pooled budget (albeit without a section 33 agreement).

The 2017-18 revenue funding has continued to support the following initiatives and
population groups:

e older people to maintain their independence, avoiding unnecessary hospital
admission and preventing delayed discharges.

e integrated services for people with learning disabilities.

e anintegrated autism service in Wales; and,

e integrated services for children with complex needs;

e support the development of the Welsh Community Care Information System.

The revenue funding had the following objectives:

e improve care coordination between social services, health, housing, education
and the third and independent sector through innovating and enhancing
schemes which support frail and older people;

e develop integrated services for people with learning disabilities and children with
complex needs;

e develop an integrated autism service, focussing on a multidisciplinary team to
support autism in adults and enhancing existing children’s neuro-developmental
services;

e strengthen the resilience of the unscheduled care system;

Page 52 28



e promote and maximise independent living opportunities (including ensuring
increased provision of timely home adaptations) in response to referrals from
health and care services;

e support recovery and recuperation by increasing the provision of reablement
services (at home or through the provision of step-down / convalescence beds in

the community setting).

Figure 8 — Overview of the Integrated Care Fund 2017/18
Q=25 Integrated Care Fund 2017-18

A|m Support older people to maintain their independence and remain at home, avoiding
AR unnecessary hospital admissions and delayed discharges.
&

Develop integrated care and support services for other groups of people.

ot MA LE 6 T @

r . Older people with Learning Children with ;
G PMp complex needs. Disabilities Complex Needs Autism Carers
Objectives: & @ @ PN -5,
S) (B )
Improve co- Strengthen Prevention: promote Reablement: Encourage
ordination between  resjlience of the & maxirrF:ise support recovery innovationgand
organisations o ynscheduled care  independent living and recuperation new models of
meet demand system opportunities in the community working
(2417)
m\% Frail Older Peopl Arange of integrated services, promoting preventative services and enhancing
E rai er reopie patient flow with community-based solutions for ongoing care and support.
3 Learning Disabilities/ Children  Piloting a new integrated service of care and support for children and their
% with Complex Needs families from initial diagnosis to adulthood.
X : -
° &_'gntegrated Autism Service Delivering a Wales-wide model of integrated care for people with Autism
S Ve o Warie) O™ Preparation for the introduction of the Welsh Community Care Information System

S Capital Developments Support to deliver the above revenue projects

@ Frail Older People: £3.743m, LD / CwCN: £1.737m, WCCIS: £201k, Autism: £367k, Capital: £1.291m.

3.85 In addition, capital funding was released with the following aims:

e Toreduce demands on the NHS and social care services;

e To support more joint developments such as ‘step down’, reablement or other
accommodation-based solutions by Local Authority Housing and Social Services
Departments, Local Health Boards, Registered Social Landlords and other Third
Sector organisations;

e To save money for the NHS and Social Services by finding local accommodation
solutions for people who are accommodated out of area, individuals with
complex needs and people with learning disabilities.

Page 53 29



3.86 An indication of the impact of various ICF initiatives in securing real change for
citizens across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan can be presented in Figures as

follows:

Figure 9 — ICF Impact on Assisting Hospital Discharge

513

hospital discharges

1,271

new social work

facilitsted by Single sllocations
Point of Access facilitated by
Integrated

o~

hospital discharges
assisted by
Accommodation
Solutions

36

people provided with

Discharge Service
adaptations referrals
Solutions
dealt with by Single Point of Access, H
ggoo
oooo
Integrated Discharge Service to -

725 ! [
Accommodation Solutions, Residential
assist hospital discharge
people assisted by

rapid response
Accommodation 3 2 8 9 Ca S e S
Discharge to Assess, Bridging Teams and
Joint Equipment Store

279

people provided
with additional
home care support
by the Bridging
Teams

e

~ 234

people provided
with access to
reablement support
in aresidential
seeting

step up/step down
accommadation
by Accommodation
Solutions

Occupational
Therapist via
Accommodation
Solutions

What Matters to Me Home First Sustainable and Prudent Use of Resources

Figure 10 - ICF Impact on Home First and Independent Living

1,043

rapid response
adaptations referrals

7,202

triage referrals to
Single Point of

received by Access to prevent
Accommodation hospital admission,
Solutions

4,628

home visits made to
Cardiff residents to
provide a holistic
assessment by
Preventative
Interventions

I

dealt with by Preventative Interventions, Single
Point of Access, Enhanced Review and
Reablement and the Adults with Learning
Disabilities and Complex Needs 'Closer to
Home' projec t.which helped people to

remain at home and
308 be independent

visits made by Joint
Equipment Store

Occupational Therapist

via Preventative
Interventions
Wan and Man service
-..via Preventative
Interventions

227

reviews completed for
adults with learning
disabilities by
Enhanced Review,
and Reablement

‘What Matters to Me Home First

Page 54

131,526 cases v

Avoiding Harm, Waste and Variation

45

adults with learning
disabilities and
complex needs
supported to live
closerto home

743

signposts by Third
Sector Brokerage in
single Point of Access
to prevent hospital
admission

Sustainable and Prudent Use of Resources  Avoiding Harm, Waste and Variation

30



Figure 11 — ICF Impact on Cost Avoidance or Financial Savings

rosskh, £ 1.645 Msaved,_J£38.2k

saved as a result of saved as a result of
Discharge to Assess as a result of Accommadation Solutions step Closer to Home
down provision, Discharge to Assess and the supporrésimusmg
Adults with Learning Disabilities and Complex — P
Needs 'Closer to Home' project due to

cost avoidance or
3,500 fi l - 45
mitzlb&ddfvs InanCIa SaVIngS ::dggzefu';ﬂzl;t:adnu

£639k\ 2,327

hospltal bed days
saved as aresult of saved as aresult of
Accommodation Accommodation

Solutions Solutions step down
provision

What Matters to Me Home First Sustainable and Prudent Use of Resources  Avoiding Harm, Waste and Variation

3.87 The funding agreed by the Regional Partnership Board for ICF schemes in 2017/18
can be seen in Appendix 3.

Locality Working

3.88 The ‘Shaping Our Future Wellbeing: In Our Community Programme’ was established
by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board in 2016/17 to develop the strategic
programme for the major physical infrastructure required to support improved
access to community services and assets, improve health outcomes, set the tone for
co-production and ultimately reduce health inequalities. The scope of the
programme is to consider:

o Well-being services, lifestyle information and education, signposting, etc.

e Existing range of community based services

e Shift of clinics from hospital, routine services/interventions and transformational
innovative services and supporting diagnostics, therapeutic services, IT/health
technology

3.89 The aimis to provide a Health and Well-being Centre within each locality and a Well-
being Hub within each primary care cluster over the course of the next 3-7 years. It is
proposed that each hub will be comprised of four principle zones, each delivering a
range of services to the local community (Figure 12):

Page 55 31



Figure 12 — Well-being Hub Zones

Group: W
Group:Muttipurpose .

Training ~

kiehen - Wellbeing Zone
Cafe Reception/Welcome

s Waiting/Info
Community o .

Zone

(Ely/Caerau Community
Hub)

3.90 The sites of the first three well-being hubs have now been agreed. The first will be
located at Park View, which will replace Park View Health Centre. It will be placed
adjacent to the Ely/Caerau Community Hub and will serve the residents of the South
West Cardiff Cluster. The second will be located in Maelfa and placed adjacent to the
Powerhouse Community Hub. It will replace Llanedeyrn Health Centre and will likely
serve the local residents of Llanederyn and Pentwyn. The third health and well-being
hub will be located within Cardiff Royal Infirmary and will serve residents located
within the South and East Locality. It will also be the source of well-being services for
the South East Cardiff Cluster.

Park View visual Maelfa visual Cardiff Royal Infirmary site map

Page 56 32



. Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
Social Value SOCIAL VALUE FORUM

3.91 Part 2 (Section 16) of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act introduces a
duty on local authorities and local health boards to promote the development, in
their area, of not-for-profit organisations to provide care and support for carers, and
preventative services. These models include social enterprises, co-operative
organisations, co-operative arrangements, user-led services and the third sector.

3.92 The Act also specifies that local authorities with local health board providers
must establish regional forums to support social value based providers to develop a
shared understanding of the common agenda, and to share and develop good
practice. The aim of these forums is to encourage a flourishing social value sector
which is able and willing to fulfil service delivery opportunities.

3.93 In May 2017, the Partnership took its first steps to establish a Social Value Forum.
Working with Social Firms Wales Ltd, the Partnership welcomed partners from
across our region to consider the shape and scope of this development. The
comments and suggestions from that meeting can be found in the Social Value
Forum Workshop Report.

3.94 Inresponse to a request from the social value sector during the May meeting, the
Partnership in collaboration with Social Business Wales hosted an Understanding
Procurement to Deliver Innovative Public Services Workshop in September 2017. The

Partnership also developed a glossary for some of the terms and acronyms
commonly used in commissioning and procurement.

3.95 The Partnership also successfully appointed a number of Social Value Champions to
help us develop this agenda. Since their appointment, two 'Social Value Champion
Steering Group' meetings have been held. There was consensus to focus efforts on
supporting the development of existing commissioning and procurement processes,
to help identify and achieve greater ‘social value’ from public sector contracts. A
workshop will be held in the next financial year to take forward this piece of work.

Page 57 33


http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/Social-Value-Forum-Workshop-Report-030517.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/Social-Value-Forum-Workshop-Report-030517.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/understanding-procurement-deliver-innovative-public-services/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/understanding-procurement-deliver-innovative-public-services/
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/Demystifying-Commissioning-and-Procurement-Key-Terms-and-Acronyms.pdf
http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/Our-Social-Value-Champions.pdf

Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Social Value Champions

Citizen Engagement

let’s tal
amser glarad I

3.96 Within Section 5 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act, there is a
requirement to promote the well-being of people who need care and support, and
carers who need support. Part of this duty means putting robust arrangements in
place for encouraging the involvement of people at all stages of the design and
operation of services.

3.97 Throughout this report there have been numerous examples of
where the Partnership has worked with stakeholders and
service users to inform future service development and to help
co-design new provision. Throughout 2017/18, these have

included:

° A stakeholder workshop involving over 80 people from
health, housing and social care (including third sector and
independent providers) to provide feedback and
additional information for the Joint Market Position
Statement and Commissioning Strategy for Older
People’s Services.

2 Listening to the Views and ;
¥T  Aspirations of Older Peoplein |77
relation to Housing =

St g N

14700 ol e 20 ke i i profec o e ry Qo e e hezare 1o
et s 3 e b s 2.0 o e 07860 608 920,

° Various engagement methods capturing over 115 responses on the draft Area
Plan for Care and Support Needs, including a stakeholder workshop, online

public survey and hard copy ‘post cards’.

jats talk
€ Sreorsiarad

Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Area Plan for Care and Support Needs

hac.integration@wales.nhs.uk ‘dex‘les(wnmnha

c3sC

BOV_mscpship

(G Vs]




3.98

3.99

3.100

3.101

3.102

3.103

In addition, Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils and Cardiff and Vale
University Health Board commissioned Carers Trust South East Wales (CTSEW) to
undertake a short project in 2016 to research options to establish a sustainable carer
engagement framework or model for the Region. The work identified a clear gap in
this area and although carers are more actively involved in decisions affecting the
care and support of the person they care for, there is less opportunity for carers to
be involved the decision making process of both local authorities and health in
general.

Following engagement with carers, professionals across all sectors and a carers’
workshop in 2017 the development of a Carers Hub was identified as the preferred
model to work towards. The need for a one stop shop approach was also identified
by carers during the development of the Cardiff and Vale Population Needs
Assessment and continues to be highlighted in feedback from carers. This forms the
basis of the second phase of the work by CTSEW which began in 2017.

The following outcomes were expected from Phase 2:

1. Work with Cardiff and the Vale Councils, UHB and Third Sector Councils to
develop a proposal to provide a one stop shop facility

2. Toform atask and finish ’Expert Panel’ of carers to help inform planning and to
provide a voice for carers during the project lifetime and beyond

3. Maintain a dialogue between groups who support carers in Cardiff and the Vale
of Glamorgan, across all service areas (formal and informal) to facilitate their
participation in consultation and engagement opportunities relevant to carers

4. Demonstrate linkages and contact with County Voluntary Councils (GVS and
C3SC), the Community Health Council and other relevant representative bodies

The work is overseen by a Steering Group consisting of both local authorities, Cardiff
and Vale University Health Board and Glamorgan Voluntary Services (GVS). They
meet regularly with CTSEW which provides the Steering Group with progress reports.

The Carer Engagement Service Partnership worked together to develop a proposal
for a Carers Hub and Spoke service which includes a centralised point of contact via
telephone and email (the hub) and outreach sessions (group or face to face) in
community venues throughout Cardiff and the Vale (the spokes). The Hub would
also co-ordinate engagement with carers via the Carers Expert Panel. The proposal
for revenue and capital funding was submitted to the ICF Programme Board in
February 2018.

To date, six carers have joined the Carers Expert Panel and work is ongoing to
encourage and support other carers to be involved. This will provide an effective
mechanism for ongoing engagement and consultation with carers and will
complement the proposed one stop shop service.

Page 59 35



3.104

3.105

3.106

3.107

3.108

3.109

The region has taken a unique approach within Wales by ensuring that the design of
the new Wales Community Care Information System (WCCIS) is focused upon a
region-wide service model that is led by service need.

Implementation is being planned in line with the supplier's delivery of the full
functionality of WCCIS as set out within the Statement of Requirements and
subsequent Functional Analyses. Consequently the work plan for 2017-18 focused
upon delivering the new system within the Vale of Glamorgan and making initial
preparation for implementation across the wider region.

Implementation of WCCIS within the Vale of Glamorgan has been undertaken, with
careful planning to ensure that the infrastructure in place is capable of ensuring a
single point of referral capability and fully integrated record keeping for key
operational services across the region, and not just the Vale. For example, this will
mean that users from across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan will only be required
to make one referral to access any Community Resource Team throughout the
region once the system is fully implemented. Within the Vale of Glamorgan, the
benefits are already being experienced from being able to access a shared record
across the live WCCIS sites in other parts of Wales.

In Cardiff Council, the Social Services Directorate and the Council’s commitment to
implementing a Welsh Community Care Information System remains unchanged.
However the extensive testing it has undertaken has been unable to evidence that
W(CCIS is yet able to meet the Council’s business needs, or that it can sustain a safe
and reliable platform for operational purposes over the short to medium term.

The UHB supports, in principle, WCCIS as a
tool to support transformation and
integrated care. The UHB intends to adopt
the tool as part of a transformation

approach to deliver the benefits of further
integration and the shared record. The
timing of this will be based on an objective
assessment, however as the UHB already

has a well-functioning IT system for
community services and mental health this will reposition a deployment to the later
stages of the programme, enabling LHBs without a community IT system to deploy as
a priority. The UHB still intends to time deployment to be synchronised with Cardiff
Council and will continue to work to deploy regionally.

Since the Vale implementation the supplier has released additional functionality to
support financial management of services. The Vale intends to put a programme of
work in place to roll this functionality out in the 2018/19 financial year.

Page 60 36



3.110 Cardiff Council and the UHB will continue work in partnership to identify how the
identified challenges to implementation will be overcome. Initially, this will take the
form of a suite of integration initiatives which will allow summary records from
existing systems to be made available across organisational and system boundaries.
This will support practitioners by ensuring that relevant information such as open
referrals and involved staff can be shared effectively. This work will be foundational
to providing more detailed records, ultimately acting as an archive service to
facilitate migration to the WCCIS platform.

4, Future Partnership Priorities

At the Regional Partnership Board’s Development Session on 12" June 2018, the Board
reviewed progress and considered priorities going forward.

The Regional Partnership Board’s response to ‘A Healthier Wales’ will form an integral part
of the RPBs forward programme and will build on the partnership working already
developed through the Integrated Care Fund, Primary Care Fund and locality working. The
Board is keen to play an active part in further developing seamless care and developing a
closer relationship with clusters to ensure a citizen focussed approach to promoting well-
being, independence and keeping people at home.

In the first 2 years of existence the RPB has delivered some key pieces of work in response
to the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act requirements. These have included the
Population Needs Assessment, the Area Plan for Care and Support Needs and a Joint Market
Position statement and commissioning strategy for older people. Building on this work, the
Board will continue to focus on the priority areas for integration set out in the Area Plan.
However the Board has also agreed to drive forward continuing progress in relation to:

e Locality/Cluster working

e Housing and Accommodation Solutions

e Mental health — considering a life journey from children and young people (including

ACEs) to older people
e Workforce
e Alignment with the Public Service Boards

Progress against the RPBs priorities will be set out in the quarterly work programme updates
and reported as part of the Annual Report in June 2019.

Page 61 37


http://www.cvihsc.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Workshop-Report-120618.pdf
https://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/180608healthier-wales-mainen.pdf

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

Appendix 1

Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
INTEGRATED HEALT!
& SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP

PARTNERIAETH IECHYD
& GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL INTEGREDIG
Caerdydd & Bro Morgannwg

Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board: Terms of Reference

BACKGROUND

The Part 9 Statutory Guidance (Partnership Arrangements) of the Social Services
and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (the Act) and the Partnership Arrangements
(Wales) Regulations 2015 set out the main requirements, purpose and
responsibilities of the Regional Partnership Board.

These Terms of Reference supplement these documents and set out specific local
detail for the Cardiff and the Vale Regional Partnership Board.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Cardiff and Vale Regional Partnership Board is to ensure the
partnership bodies work effectively together to:

e Respond to the population assessment carried out in accordance with section 14
of the Act;

e Implement the plans for each of the local authority areas covered by the Board
which local authorities and local health boards are each required to prepare and
publish under section 14A of the Act;

e Ensure the partnership bodies provide sufficient resources for the partnership
arrangements in accordance with their powers under section 167 of the Act;

e Promote the establishment of pooled funds where appropriate;

e Ensure that services and resources are used in the most effective and efficient
way to improve outcomes for people in their region —including the use of the
Integrated Care Fund;

e Prepare an annual report for Welsh Ministers on the extent to which the board’s
objectives have been achieved;

e Provide strategic leadership to ensure that information is shared and used
effectively to improve the delivery of services, care and support, using
technology and common systems to underpin this;

¢ Inform the development of the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Public Service
Board’s Wellbeing Plans and support delivery in response to the requirements of
the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015.

The Regional Partnership Board will prioritise the integration of services in relation
to:

e Older people with complex needs and long term conditions, including dementia;

Page 62 38



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

e People with learning disabilities;

e Carers, including young carers;

e Integrated Family Support Services;

e Children with complex needs due to disability or illness;

e Establishment of pooled funds in relation to family support functions from 2016
and care home accommodation by 2018.

DELEGATED POWERS AND AUTHORITY

The Regional Partnership Board is authorised by the Cardiff and Vale University
Health Board, Cardiff Council and the Vale of Glamorgan Council to deliver the
requirements of Part 9 of the Act.

The Regional Partnership Board has authority to establish short life working groups
which are time limited to focus on a specific matter of advice or assurance as
determined by the Partnership Board.

MEMBERSHIP
The Regional Partnership Board must include:

e At least one elected member of each of Cardiff City and County Council and Vale
of Glamorgan Council;

e At least one member of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board;

e The persons appointed as Directors of Social Services under section 144 of the
Act in respect of Cardiff City and County Council and Vale of Glamorgan Council,
or their nominated representatives;

e Arepresentative of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board;

e Two persons who represent the interests of the third sector organisations in the
area covered by the Regional Partnership Board;

e At least one person who represents the interests of care providers in the area
covered by the Regional Partnership Board;

e One person to represent people with needs for care and support in the area
covered by the Regional Partnership Board;

e One person to represent carers in the area covered by the Regional Partnership
Board;

e One representative of each of Cardiff Third Sector Council and Glamorgan
Voluntary Services;

e One representative of a national third sector organisation.

Officers, organisations or individuals will be invited to attend as required, or may be
co-opted to be members of the Regional Partnership Board as appropriate.

A Chair and two Deputies from the University Health Board and the two Local
Authorities will be selected from amongst the membership on a bi-annual basis.

Page 63 39



5. MEETINGS

5.1 Meetings will be quorate when the minimum membership (section 4) set out in the
Statutory Guidance is achieved.

Frequency of Meetings
5.2 The Regional Partnership Board will meet four times per year on a formal basis.

5.3 In addition to the formal Board Meetings, Development sessions and/or Workshops
will be undertaken to develop the priorities of the Partnership’s work programme.
The focus and frequency of these sessions will be agreed by the Board as required.

5.4  The Partnership’s Strategic Leadership Group will meet at intervening periods
between the Regional Partnership Board meetings, in part to ensure that any
required decisions/actions required at short notice can be undertaken with joint
agreement from the 5 organisations pending final approval by the Partnership Board
at the diarised time.

Secretariat

5.5 Secretariat functions will be performed by the Integrated Health and Social Care
Partnership Team.

Agenda Items

e Agenda Items should be submitted to the secretariat at least one calendar
month before each Partnership Board meeting;

e Papers will be structured using an agreed format;

e Papers will be distributed a minimum of 5 working days before each meeting.

6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

6.1 All RPB members are encouraged to resolve any issues or concerns that they may
have at the earliest opportunity. It is important that as issues do arise, they are dealt
with in a fair and timely manner. While some conflicts will be resolved by an informal
discussion between parties, other will need a process for successful resolution.

6.2 The RPB endorses the following principles for members to follow:

e Respect for another’s point of view;
e Commitment to resolving the issue;
o Willingness to compromise;

e Confidentiality;

e Impartiality;

e Respect;

e Prompt action, and

Page 64 40



e Freedom from repercussions.

6.3 Should a conflict arise that cannot be resolved via informal discussion, the following
procedure will apply:

e The dispute must be set out in writing and sent to the Chair.

e The Chair will use their discretion to bring the issue to the next RPB meeting, or
call an extraordinary meeting;

e The matter should be discussed with all members present, unless they have
advised the Chair, preferably in writing, that they are aware there is a dispute
resolution meeting being held and they are unable to attend.

e The Chair will call for a motion from the RPB, e.g. to appoint an independent
assessor, seek mediation, call a special meeting, or to dismiss the complaint. All
members present at the meeting will vote on the motion.

Where mediation is sought,

The mediator must be:
e A person chosen by agreement between the parties; or
e |nthe absence of agreement, a person appointed by the RPB.

- The mediator, in conducting the mediation must:
e Give parties to the mediation process every opportunity to be heard; and
e Allow due consideration by all parties of any written statement submitted by
any party; and
- The mediator must not determine the dispute.
- The mediation must be confidential and without prejudice.

7. TERMS OF REFERENCE will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Updated: May 2018

Page 65 M



Membership of the Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board

Required Membership Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Membership

At least one elected member from Cardiff and the Vale | Cardiff Council

of Glamorgan local authorities; e ClIr Susan Elsmore, Cabinet Member for Social Care and Health
(Chair of the Regional Partnership Board)

e Cllr Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member for Children and Families

e Cllr Lynda Thorne, Cabinet Member for Housing & Communities

e Sarah McGill, Corporate Director — People and Communities

Vale of Glamorgan Council

e Cllr Gordon Kemp, Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and Leisure
(Vice Chair of the Regional Partnership Board)
Cllr Andrew Parker, Cabinet Member for Housing and Building Services

99 abed

At least one member of the Cardiff and Vale University

Maria Battle, Chair of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board

Health Board (Vice Chair of the Regional Partnership Board)

e Charles (Jan) Janczewski, Vice Chair of Cardiff and Vale University Health Board
The persons appointed as Directors of Social Services e Tony Young, Director of Social Services, Cardiff Council (until March 2018)
under section 144 of the Act in respect of Cardiff e Claire Marchant, Director of Social Services, Cardiff Council (from July 2018)
Council and Vale of Glamorgan Council, or their e Lance Carver, Director of Social Services, Vale of Glamorgan Council
nominated representatives
A representative of Cardiff and Vale University Health e Len Richards, Chief Executive, Cardiff and Vale University Health Board
Board e Abigail Harris, Director of Planning and Strategy, Cardiff and Vale University

Health Board

Two persons who represent the interests of the third e Sheila Hendrickson-Brown, Chief Executive Officer, Cardiff Third sector Council
sector organisations in the area covered by the (C3sC)
Regional Partnership Board e Rachel Connor, Chief Executive Officer, Glamorgan Voluntary Service (GVS)

One Person who represents the interests of national

Children & Young People - Sam Austin, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of

42




/9 abed

third sector organisations (for both Older People and
Children & Young People)

Operational Services, Llamau
Older People — Jeff Hawkins, (until March 2018) Sarah Wills, Head of Service
(Central) Gofal (from May 2018)

At least one person who represents the interests of
care providers in the area covered by the Regional
Partnership Board

Malcolm Perrett, Vice Chair of Care Forum Wales

One person to represent people with needs for care
and support in the area covered by the Regional
Partnership Board

Andrew Templeton, Chief Executive, YMCA Cardiff

One person to represent carers in the area covered by
the Regional Partnership Board

James Livingstone, Carers Representative

Other representation

Estelle Hitchon, Director of Partnerships and Engagement, Welsh Ambulance
Services NHS Trust
Gerry Evans, Director of Regulation & Intelligence, Social Care Wales (Observer)

Secretariat

Integrating Health & Social Care Partnership Secretariat

Rachel Jones, Assistant Director — Integrating Health & Social Care, IHSC
Partnership

Meredith Gardiner, Programme Manager — Health & Wellbeing, IHSC
Partnership

Updated May 2018

43




Appendix 2

\\ \.\' Lf%

Integrated Family Support Team Budget 2017/18

The IFST budget is funded through Welsh Government which remains at £550,000. There is
an additional £18,000 to cover provision for training available to Cardiff and Vale of
Glamorgan IFST to support the Central Training Unit based at Bridgend.

Actual expenditure 2017-2018

Total expenditure Budgeted Reserves Projected
to date (£) (£) Expenditure (£)
Income
Grant 0 568,000.00 568,000.00
Sundry Income 300.00 - 568,300.00
Expenditure

Salaries 305,746.79 162,469.94
Medical 510.00 0
Apprenticeship Levy 773.83 420.00
Professional Fees 60.00 0
Insurance 0 588.33
Training 1,500.00 - 18,000.00

Sub Total 305,590.62 181,478.27 487,068.89
Premises 9,000.00 0

Sub Total 9,000.00 0 9,000.00
Travel Costs 6,601.10 3,300.00

Sub Total 6,601.10 3,300.00 9,901.10
Books 0 300.00
Stationery / Printing 524.27 319.00
Office equipment /
Furniture 1,305.77 0
OLR Photocopiers 0 0
Printing costs 805.16 390.11
Hospitality 35.04 0
Conference
Expenses 90.40 0
Translation services 0 0
Catering /
Refreshments 4.40 0
Telephones 2,347.67 2,540.00
Postage 266.35 30.00
Office Hardware 0 1,032.20
Computer Software 0 0
Child in Need 669.48 365.00
Purchase IRO time 0 51,295.00
Commissioning
Services 0 0

44



Sub Total 6,048.54 56,271.31 62,319.85
Transfers
TOTAL 327,240.26 241,049.58 568,289.84
Net Surplus / Deficit 10.16
45

Page 69




Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
INTEGRATED HEALTH
& SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP

PARTNERIAETH IECHYD
& GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL INTEGREDIG
Caerdydd & Bro Morgannwg

Integrated Care Fund 2017/18

Appendix 3

Revenue
2017-18 WG
Funding Service Description Allocation (£)
Allocation
Frail Older Preventative Provision of holistic independent living services in relation to 370,000
People: Interventions income, financial assessments, advice regarding telecare,
disabled adaptations, slips/trips/falls and housing, locality
working along with third sector support to address social
isolation.
First Point of The Cardiff-based, FPOC provides signposting, information and FPOC: 270,000
Contact (FPOC) / advice on preventative services within the Cardiff area. The
Single Point of service includes a range of Visiting Officers, Contact Telephone
Access (SPOA) team personnel and 2wte social worker posts.
The Vale-based SPOA provides a single point of access for
various health, local, authority and third sector services across
the Vale and in some cases the Cardiff and Vale region. The SPOA: 550,000
service includes social care officers, customer service reps,
district nursing team, social workers, occupational therapy and
a third sector broker.
Total: 820,000
Extended A range of services to sustain and enhance patient flow 958,000
Community through Community Resource Teams. Provision includes:
Reablement - Additional therapeutic support for patients with additional
needs;
- Third sector brokerage;
- Additional home care support model;
- Home care bridging teams;
- Pharmacy advice and support.
Discharge to 2 community based units to facilitate assessment and ongoing 626,000
Assess planning for patients’ transition home from hospital. 2
Accommodation different models are being piloted:
- Nursing home assessment facilities within Cardiff (6-8 beds);
- Residential home reablement facilities (6 beds) with the Vale
of Glamorgan.
Accommodation Multi-disciplinary team of Accommodation Solutions officers 369,000
Solutions Project and Occupational Therapists, working with hospital staff to
assess and plan for individual housing needs in preparation for
their discharge. The scheme includes provision of step up / step
down accommodation to prevent admission and expedite
discharge.
Integrated Provision of Social Workers, Social Work Assistants and Third 528,000
Discharge Service | Sector Discharge Support Officers to provide enhanced ward
based discharge support.
Commissioning Support for development of joint commissioning plans for long 72,000
Support term care including the establishment of pooled budgets.
Learning Learning Range of service developments designed to pilot integrated 1,737,000
Disability and | Disabilities / working between health, social care and the third sector with a
Complex Children with view to establishing best practice. In summary the services

46

Page 70




Needs:

Complex Needs

include:

Enhanced multi-agency workforce for complex needs,
piloting an integrated approach for children with the most
complex needs.

Supported accommodation for complex needs to reduce
the need for out of area placements.

Enhanced day opportunities providing regional access to
existing day opportunities for individuals excluded as a
result of complex needs.

Bespoke family-based respite provision.

Learning disability enablement service to review current
packages of care with the aim of providing community-
based alternatives.

Learning Disability Front Door Services providing access to
first level information services.

Regionalising neuro-development services in line with
education provision.

Bespoke 1:1 and group activities for young people to learn
and embed independent living skills.

Enhanced parenting support for families with children with
ADHD / ASD.

Support services for parents with learning disabilities.
Programme support.

Autism:

Integrated
Services for
Autism

Implementation of National Integrated Autism Service (IAS)
across Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan in line with Welsh
Government strategy.

367,000

Welsh
Community
Care
Information
System
(WCCIS)

Development
support for
WCCIS

In response to Welsh Government correspondence, the
Partnership has made provision for WCCIS development
support.

201,500

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Management costs / Programme and Project support /
Partnership Co-ordination / Pharmacy Project

224,000

TOTAL:
£6,272,500

6,272,500

47

Page 71




Capital 2017-18

Service

End of year projected Outcome(s)

2017-18 funding
allocation (£)

Accommodation Provision of a home adaptation and repair service for older people that 112,000
Solutions Programme supports quick and safe hospital discharge and a timely preventative

approach to reducing hazards that might lead to hospital admission or

re-admission.
Preventative Support for the Preventative Interventions and Accommodation 195,000
Interventions Solutions ICF revenue projects to maintain citizen independence at

home and also supporting quick and safe discharge from hospital.

Equipment will be focused upon reducing hospital admission and

expediting discharge and will be available regionally across Cardiff and

the Vale of Glamorgan.
Re-modeling of Grand Development of Grand Avenue as a specialist dementia day care service 336,000
Avenue Day Centre for people with moderate to high levels of dementia and/or functional

mental health difficulties, which may be combined with high care and

support needs. This will facilitate the ability of people to continue living

in their own homes within their own communities for as long as

possible. Cardiff Council is contributing a further £780k towards the

overall cost.
Day Services for Adults | Refurbishment and enhancement of Tremorfa Day Opportunities 50,000
with Learning Centre, improving and increasing capacity of existing facilities available
Disabilities and to people with learning disabilities and complex needs in Cardiff.
Complex Needs.
Out of School facilities | Refurbishment and enhancement of existing facilities at Ty Gwyn 300,000
for Children and Young | Special School. The proposal seeks to improve and increase the capacity
People with Complex of an existing building (Trelai Youth Centre) on the special school
Needs and Learning campus, making it available to children with learning disabilities and
Disabilities. complex needs in Cardiff for out of school activities.
Third Sector Capital To enable third sector organisations to invest in capital items which 50,000
Investment Fund support the development of start up projects, social enterprises and/or

expansion of existing services.
Community Mental To support the development of Barry Hospital as one of three ‘super’ 198,000
Health Services (Barry sites for Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) provision.
Hospital)
Feasibility study for In line for the requirement to develop a longer term strategic plan, 50,000

Regional Older Person
and Extra Care
Accommodation.

feasibility planning will be undertaken to consider provision of new
regional older people and extra care accommodation.

Allocation

Total: £1,291,000

48

Page 72




Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan
INTEGRATED HEALTH
& SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP

PARTNERIAETH IECHYD
& GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL INTEGREDIG
Caerdydd & Bro Morgannwg

If you require any further information on this report, please contact the
Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership Secretariat via:

@ hsc.integration@wales.nhs.uk

029 2033 5071

www.cvihsc.co.uk

2

n @CVIHSCPartnership , @CV_ihscpship W

49

Page 73


mailto:hsc.integration@wales.nhs.uk
http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.freeiconspng.com/icons/email-icon&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwiRsp_l6NPSAhUCf5AKHdgtDwUQwW4IGDAB&sig2=5kQlYnChj2xiK3mWNlQMpA&usg=AFQjCNEvMM9RJodqUNG9mf7ZqDiNmmexEQ
https://www.google.co.uk/url?url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/281830/call_circle_communication_mobile_phone_telephone_icon&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjfjPaP6dPSAhXMx1QKHbQ4AfAQwW4IFjAA&sig2=MkLpAJBecXQPV5poXsBaIA&usg=AFQjCNHOkrc2BxU1-NlEu290YBkFEeMtSQ

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendx B =)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

In Brief - A Healthier Wales:

Health and Social Care



c766552_1
Typewriter
Appendix B


Welsh Government wants everyone to have long,
healthy, happy lives. For this to happen we need to
help people look after themselves well, and we need
to make sure we have the right health and social
care services to help people stay well, to get better
when they are ill, or to live the best life possible when
they have problems that won't get better.

Last year we asked a group of experts to give us
advice on how we can make sure our health services
and the services which look after people who need
extra support (social care) are the best they can

be. Those experts told us we should make some
changes, in particular they said we needed to make
it easier for the NHS and social care to work together
in a joined-up way. They should also work with other
services like education and housing, to help people
stay healthy and independent for as long as possible.
When someone needs help because their health is
poor, that help must be provided by the right people,
in the right place, and at the right time.

The plan we have written explains how we will make
these things happen.

What we want health and social care to be
like in future:

* We want services which support people to stay
well, not just treat them when they become ill.

* When people need help, health and social care
services will work with them and their loved ones
to find out what is best for them and agree how to
make those things happen. We call this a ‘person-
centred approach’.

* More services will be provided outside of
hospitals, closer to home, or at home, and people
will only go into hospital for treatment that
cannot be provided safely anywhere else.

This ‘community-based approach’ will help take
pressure off our hospitals, reduce the time people
have to wait to be treated, and the time they
spend in hospital when they have to go there.

* Our health and social care services will use the
latest technology and medicines to help people
get better, or to live the best life possible if they
aren’t able to get better.

2 | In Brief - A Healthier Wales: our plan for health and soPcQTgaee 76



The five main ways we want to change health and social care are:

In each part of Wales the health and social care system will work together so that people using them
won't notice when they are provided by different organisations. New ways of joined-up working will
start locally and scale up to the whole of Wales. We will make sure local services learn from each other
and share what they do, because we want everyone in Wales to have the same high quality services.
We also want services to use a single digital record so that they can give the most appropriate support
and treatment based on a complete picture of a person’s needs.

We want to shift services out of hospital to communities, and we want more services which stop
people getting ill by detecting things earlier, or preventing them altogether. This will include helping
people manage their own health, and manage long term illnesses. We also want to make it easier for
people to remain active and independent in their hormes and communities.

We will get better at measuring what really matters to people, so we can use that to work out which
services and treatments work well, and which ones need to be improved. We will identify and support
the best new models of health and social care so they scale up more quickly to the whole of Wales.

We will make Wales a great place to work in health and social care, and we will do more to support

carers and volunteers. We will invest in new technology which will make a real difference to keeping
people well, and help our staff to work better. By making health and social care a good career choice,
investing in training and skills, and supporting health and wellbeing at work, we will be able to get and
keep the talented people we need to work in Wales. We will look to introduce digital advances that help
staff work more effectively.

To make our services work as a single system, we need everyone to work together and pull in the same
direction. We think we can do this in a small country like Wales, especially if we as a government
provide stronger national leadership, and make sure we keep talking - and listening - to the people
who deliver and use our health and social care services.

Pag\%riZfYA Healthier Wales: our plan for health and social care | 3



How will we pay for this?

Health and social care services cost a lot of money,
and it is important to make sure that all of that
money is spent well and we get the most out of it.

The money we get from the UK government isn’t
enough to provide all the different services people
want, which means we have to make difficult choices
about what we can provide, especially as more
people are living longer into old age. To help us work
out how we can make sure we are able to afford
health and social care in future we will be asking
people who know a lot about these things to give

us advice.

Mae’r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.
This document is also available in Welsh.

OGL © Crown copyright 2018 WG34928 Digital ISBN: 978-1-78937-298-4

What else can help?

As well as thinking about the NHS and social care,
we will also look at all the other things we are
responsible for as a government that can make

a difference to people’s health, like support for
families, education, housing, employment and the
environment.

We know that many of the changes we need to make
will be difficult, but in Wales we are still very proud
that the healthcare service which was founded

70 years ago by a famous Welshman, Aneurin Bevan,
is still going strong and providing all sorts of amazing
things that people 70 years ago could never have
imagined. It is our job to make sure we do what is
necessary now to safeguard these services so that
they are able to carry on supporting people into

the future.

4 | In Brief - A Healthier Wales: our plan for health and saglgaee 78



Agenda Item 6

CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
5 SEPTEMBER 2018

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Purpose of Report

1. The Council’s Constitution states (Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7) that each Scrutiny
Committee will set its own work programme. The Community & Adult Services
Scrutiny Committee’s terms of reference provide the Committee with the

responsibility for the scrutiny of a number of specific service areas.

2. This report provides the Committee with the output from the Work Programming
Forum, which took place on the 2 August 2018. The resulting list of items has,
where possible, been populated into a calendar, attached at Appendix A, for the

Committee’s consideration and approval.

3. Members may also wish to approve the proposed Task & Finish Inquiry and other

potential topics, as listed in paragraphs 13 to 16 of this report.
Background

4. Scrutiny plays an essential role in promoting accountability, efficiency and
effectiveness in the Council’s decision-making process and the way in which it

delivers services. The main roles of the Scrutiny Committees are:

Page 79



e Holding the Cabinet and officers as decision-makers to account.

e Being a ‘critical friend’, through questioning how decisions have been made to
provide a ‘check and balance’ to decision makers, adding legitimacy to the
decision making process.

e Undertaking reviews of Council services and policy.

e Undertaking reviews to develop Council services and policies.

5. A CASSC Work Programme Forum took place on the 2 August 2018. At this

meeting, Members considered 48 Items from the following sources:

e CASSC Terms of Reference
e Community & Adult Services Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18
e Scrutiny Member suggestions
e Cabinet & Director suggestions
e Cabinet Forward Plan
e Relevant extracts from:
e Corporate Plan
o Capital Ambition
e Service Delivery Plans
e External organisations’ work streams that could be reported to the Scrutiny

Committee.

Page 80



6. At this meeting Members also agreed that, to aid in focussing the agendas more
effectively and maximising the impact of the scrutiny of each item at Committee,
Members would continue the way that issues would be scrutinised in the future to

include:

e Committee meetings would aim to last no more than 3 hours, which equates
to approximately 2 substantial items and 1 smaller item, as recommended by
the Wales Audit Office.

e A system of briefs/updates/progress reports be established, to free up
valuable Committee time, but also to keep Members informed of progress
against these issues. Should any concerns or questions be raised these

would then be brought onto the Committee’s Agenda for formal consideration.

e Performance monitoring reports, budget monitoring and “Deep Dives” into
performance continue to be scrutinised by the Performance Panel. The Panel
would regularly report back to Committee with their comments, concerns or

requests for further investigation at full Committee.

7. Members also agreed that they would also wish to focus on the following:

e Visits to community facilities throughout the year — ARC, Hubs, Sandown
Court etc.

e Hold a number Committee meetings in the community — with targeted,
public interest-related topics/agendas

e Increase input from external withesses — public, stakeholders, service
providers, service users etc.

e Improved cover reports — PSO to develop a template to link topics with
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act; Social Services & Wellbeing Act etc.
to enable Members to be able to link topics to the duties/requirements set

out in legislation

Page 81



8. To enable the work programme to reflect this more focused approach, Members
identified those issues which they had jointly prioritised and further determined
whether it would be most appropriate to scrutinise each item either by:

i) Full Committee
ii) Inquiries/Task & Finish Investigation
iii) Briefings/updates/review reports; or via

iv) Performance Panel

9. Where possible, the resultant list of items was then inputted into a work
programme calendar attached at Appendix A to form a work programme for the
full year. Members are requested to approve the list of topics set out in the
following section, and that these be inputted into the calendar for final approval at

the next meeting.

Issues

10.The work programme for each Scrutiny Committee identifies various types of
scrutiny investigations. Members of the Committee have consistently committed
to regularly monitor and review corporate strategies, budget proposals and their
delivery, performance and improvement reports, governance reports and

reshaping services proposals.

11.The following sets out Items agreed under the headings set out in Paragraph 9

above:

12.1tems to be considered by Full Committee:

Cross Portfolio
e 2019/22 Corporate Plan (February 2019)
e 2019/20 Budget (February 2019)

Page 82



Communities & Housing

HRA Business Plan (March 2019)

Communities & Housing Directorate Delivery Plans 2019/20 (March/April
2019)

Rough Sleepers Strategy (December 2018)

Homelessness and Housing Need Strategy (December 2018)

Community & Wellbeing Hubs Programme (April/May 2019)

Older People’s Accommodation Strategy (to include a briefing from CIW on
Care Homes in Cardiff) (early 2019)

Housing Associations — How does the Council work/engage/coordinate with
HAs (May/June 2019)

Social Services — Adult Services

Domiciliary Care Provision in Cardiff (September 2018)

Cardiff & Vale Regional Partnership Board Annual Report 17/18 (September
2018)

Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report (joint with CYPSC — TBA)
Regulation & Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 (October 2018)
Equality & Human Rights Toolkit for Councillors on Accessible Housing — Tai
Pawb Presentation (October 2018)

Community Health Services Review — 12 month Update (November 2018)
Social Services Directorate Delivery Plan 19/20 (April 2019)

Local Authority Social Services Annual Report 2018/19 (Joint with CYPSC —
TBA — July 2019)

IA&A — User Views (TBA)

Supported Living Strategy (TBA)

Carers — Engagement & consultation (TBA)

Issues Relating to Nursing Homes in Cardiff — joint piece of work linked with

Older People’s Accommodation Strategy (TBA)

Page 83



13.Inquiry/ Task & Finish Investigation

At the Forum meeting, Members agreed that, due to the decreasing resources
within the Scrutiny Team one Inquiry would be undertaken during 2018/19. This

would be:

e Homelessness and Individual Supported Accommodation

The Inquiry will aim to establish:

e How the Cardiff hostels work together — is it effective?

e Individual Supported accommodation — how effective is it? What kinds of
support is on offer? Do vulnerable people get the support they need?

e To include — staff ratios; mapping of facilities and support on offer in those
facilities

e To understand the complexities of the service and the people that use the
service

e What can be learned from Best Practice and applied in Cardiff

A Scope is currently being drafted to take this issue forward, and will be linked to
the Committee’s consideration of the Rough Sleepers Strategy and
Homelessness and Housing Need Strategy, which will be considered in
December 2018. Members are requested to consider whether they would wish

to take part in this Inquiry and nominate themselves for the Task & Finish Group.
Members will also receive, in due course, the report arising from the 2017/18
Inquiry on Drug Dealing, which will be available for Members consideration

during Autumn 2018.

14.Briefings/updates/review reports

Members agreed at the Forum meeting that they would wish to receive a range
of briefing reports/updates/reviews of issues, which could run in parallel to

Committee business. These would be timetabled as per Committee Items, and

Page 84



would free up valuable Committee time and allow Members to reflect on the
issues as appropriate. Should any concerns be raised, these would then be
brought onto the Committee’s Agenda for formal consideration. Some of these

are yet to be timetabled.

Communities & Housing

e Single Licensing Enforcement Policy/rent Smart Wales (November 2018)
e Safety Checks in High Rise Properties (December 2018)

e Locality Based Working & Community Inclusion (April/May 2019)

e Housing — New Build Contractor Procurement (TBA)

e Impact of new Purpose Built Student Accommodation in Cardiff (TBA)

Social Services — Adult Services

e Supported Living Services for People with a Learning Disability — Out of
County Placements (TBA)

e Parliamentary Review of Health & Social Care in Wales (TBA)

15.Performance Panel

The aim of the Performance Panel is to undertake in-depth, performance-related
work in an informal setting — reporting any concerns back to main Committee as

appropriate. It is proposed that the Performance Panel consider the following:

e Quarterly Performance Reports (December, March, June)
e Budget Monitoring

e Council House Repairs — potential deep dive — Briefing to Members during
September 2018.

e DToC — New Performance Measures

Page 85



16. At the Forum meeting, there were a number of issues that had been suggested
for the Committee to consider. The following Items were referred to other

Scrutiny Committees for consideration:

e Economy & Culture Scrutiny Committee - Channel View Estate
Regeneration

e Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee — Additional Learning Needs

e Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee - Preventative

Budgeting; PSB/ Governance

Wales Audit Office Work Reporting/Programming

17.1n addition to the topics and issues set out in this report, the Wales Audit Office
will also be undertaking a number of studies in the coming year. The PSO will

report on these issues at an appropriate juncture:

Cardiff Specific:

¢ Housing/WHQS Local Project — report imminent, includes a Service User

Review of Housing Tenants.

Wales-wide studies

e Corporate Safeguarding — planning stage

e FPoC - project set up. Cardiff will be part of this study

¢ Tackling Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence
— project set up. Cardiff Council will not be part of this study, but SW Police
and SW Fire & Rescue Authority will be

e Integrated Care Fund — undertaking field work.

Page 86



Way Forward

18.1t is suggested that Members consider and agree the following:

The list of Iltems discussed at the Forum meeting, as set out in this report;

e Any further suggestions to be considered by the Committee during 2018/19;

e The draft timetable of issues for the Committee as set out in Appendix A;

e Inquiry/Task & finish topic as proposed in paragraph 13 of this report; and
nominate Members to populate this Task & Finish Groups; and

e Agree the issues to be reported via briefings, as set out in Paragraph 15 in

this report; and

A fully populated calendar will be submitted to the next Committee meeting for

final approval.

Legal Implications

19.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.
However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are
implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations
for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising
from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council
must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural
requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person
exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with
the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure
Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken
having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Page 87



Financial Implications

20. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and
recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this
report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications
at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented
with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision
that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from

those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is recommended:

a) To consider the information set out in this report and agree the current Work
Programme Calendar for 2018/19 as set out in this report and Appendix A,
with a view to signing off the final version at the October meeting of this
Committee.

b) To agree to undertake the Task & Finish Group Inquiry as set out in

Paragraph 13 of this report, and to seek nominations for this Inquiry.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services
30 August 2018

Page 88



68 abed

DRAFT CASSC WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 APPENDIX A
TBA -
JOINT CYPSC/
CYP/CASC CASSC Joint
05/09/2018| 10/10/2018| 07/11/2018 TBA 05/12/2018 09/01/2019 18/02/2019 06/03/2019( 03/04/2019| 01/05/2019| 05/06/2019| 03/07/2019|Committee
Domiciliary Regulation & |Community |Corporate Homelessness Corporate Plan |HRA Business Communities |Community |How the Local
Care Provision |Inspection of [Health Annual and Housing Plan 2019/20 & Housing Well-being Council Authority
in Cardiff - pre-[Social Care Services Safeguarding |need Strategy - DDP 19/20 Hubs engages with Social
decision (Wales) Act [Review - 12  |Report - pre- |pre-decision Programme - [Housing Services
2016 - month decision 12 month Associations - Annual
Briefing Update/Briefi update Briefing report
Committee Item 1 ng 2018/19
Cardiff & Vale |Equality and PLUS - further [Rough 2018/19 Budget |Cardiff & Vale of|Social Services
Regional Human Rights "Safeguarding [Sleepers Glamorgan Area |DDP 19/20
Partnership Toolkit for "issues such |Strategy Plan for Care &
Board 2017/18|Councillors as Support Needs
Annual report |on Accessible Performance 2018-23 -
Housing - Tai of MASH/ Update/Briefin
Pawb Safeguarding a/Review
Briefing Board and
review of

Committee Item 2

Safeguarding
Processes and
Procedures

CASSC Work
Programme
2018/19
Committee Item 3
Committee Item 4
Inquiries Homelessness and Supported Accommodation - TO BE TIMETABLED
2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Performance Performance & Performance & Performance
Performance Panel & Budget Budget Budget & Budget

Performance Panel




06 abed

05/09/2018

10/10/2018

07/11/2018

JOINT
CYP/CASC
TBA

05/12/2018

09/01/2019

18/02/2019

06/03/2019

03/04/2019

01/05/2019

05/06/2019

03/07/2019

TBA -
cYpsc/
CASSC Joint
Committee

Briefs/Reports/
Updates outside of
Committee

Council
Housing Voids
and Repairs -

Briefing

Impact of
Universal
Credit on
Rent Arrears -

Briefing

Cardiff & Vale
Dementia
Strategy 2017-
27 - 12 month
Update/
Briefing

Locality Based
Working andd
Comnunity
Inclusion -

Briefing

Briefs/Reports/
Updates outside of
Committee

Single
Licensing
Enforcement
Policy/Rent
Smart Wales -
Update/
Briefing

Safety Checks
in High Rise
Properties -
Update/
Briefing

Cabinet Dates

21-Sep

11-Oct

15-Nov

15-Nov

14-Dec

24-Jan

21-Feb

21-Mar

11-Apr

16-May

13-Jun

11-Jul

11-Jul




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 04/07/2018 Joint Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes


	5 Cardiff & Vale Regional Partnership Annual Report 2017/18
	Appendix A - RPB Annual Report 2017-18
	Appendix B - A Healthier Wales Summary

	6 CASSC Work Programme 2018/19
	CASSC DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2018_19 - v1




